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VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Second Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company together with the Audited Financial Statements and the Report of the Auditors for the financial
year ended March 31, 2020.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

. The financial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2020, is as summarised

below:
{Amount in INR in lakhs)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Revenue from Operations ‘ 160.67 o
Other Income 2.08 5.42
Total Revenue : 162.74 5.42
Profit/Loss before Finance Cost, Depreciation and Taxation (155.99) 0.97
Less: Finance Cost ' 11.33 0.01
Less: Depreciation and Amortisation expense 30.68 0.67
Profit/Loss Before Tax (198.00) - 0.29
Less: Tax expense - \ (2.75) 0.15
Profit/Loss After Tax | (195.24) 0.14

2. OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS:

Particulars 2019-20
Number of branches i1
Number of borrowers 33

373.50

Amount Sanctioned (INR in Lakhs)
Amount disbursed (INR in Lakhs) : 352.50
Amount outstanding (INR in Lakhs) 349.47

3. BLISINESS OVERVIEW:

The Directors have pleasure in informing you that your Company has received the Certificate of
Registration as a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company from Reserve Bank of India on
April 22, 2019. Your Company currently operates from its Registered office and 11 branches in the
states of Maharashtra, Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh and has an employee base of over 50

Is

employees.

Your Company has commenced its operations post receipt of NBFC license and has incurred losses on
accounts of payment of various incorporation expenses during the year under review.

(a} Income

Your Company’s revenue from operations for the current year was INR 160.67 Lakhs.
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(b) Profit/Loss before Tax

Your Company’s Loss before tax for the current year was INR 198 Lakhs as against the Profits of INR
0.29 Lakhs in the previous year.

(c) Profit/Loss after Tax

Your Company’s Loss after tax for the current year was INR 195.24 Lakhs as against the Profits INR 0.14
Lakhs in the previous year.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS {IND AS}:

Being a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited, your Company has
adopted the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 from April 01, 2019, and the
effective date of such transition is September 28, 2018. Such transition has been carried out from the
erstwhile Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules
issued thereunder and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) {collectively referred to as
'the Previous GAAP').

DIVIDEND:

In view of loss incurred by the Company, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the period
ended March 31, 2020.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company has suffered a loss during the year under review. The debit balance of Profit & Loss
Account has been transferred to the Balance Sheet under the head Reserves & Surplus.

REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
There was no revision of Financial Statements during the year under review.
CREDIT RATING:

During the year under review, CRISIL has rated the Company’s Bank Loan Facilities of INR 250 Crores at
“AfStable” on June 07, 2019. The rating indicates an adequate degree of safety.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There was no change in the nature of business of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR & THE DATE OF REPORT:

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of your Company,

which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company, i.e. March 31, 2020, and
the date of this Board's Report, i.e. April 29, 2020.
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SHARE CAPITAL:

During the financial year under review, pursuant to the approval of the Members of the Company, the
Authorized Share Capital of the Company was increased from INR 2.50 Crores to INR 100 Crores on July
31, 2019.

During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on
July 31, 2019, approved issuance of up to 9,75,00,000 Rights issue equity shares of INR 10/- each at an
exercise price of INR 10/- each and out of that 5,00,00,000 were offered to the existing members of the
Company vide offer letters dated September 06, 2019. 5,00,00,000 shares were allotted to the
members on September 13, 2019.

Share Capital structure of the Company as on March 31, 2020, is as follows:

{Amount in INR in Lakhs)
Authorised Capital: ' :
10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 10,000.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up Share Capital:

-5,25,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 5,250.00

Your Company has neither issued sweat equity shares nor equity shares with differential rights and as
on March 31, 2020.

Your Company has not issued any convertible instruments.

During the year under review, your Company has not granted any Employee Stock OptiOns to the
Directors and employees of the Company.

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):

As on March 31, 2020, your Company's total CAR, calculated in line with RBI regulations, stood at
108.78 per cent well above the regulatory minimum of 15 per cent; of this, Tier | CAR was 108.74 per
cent. .

DETAILS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

Pursuant to Section 2(46) of the Companies Act, 2013, Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited is
the Holding Company of the Company as it holds 100% stake in the Company.

During the year under review, the Company did not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate
Company and there were no companies which became or ceased to be the Company's Subsidiary, Joint
Venture or Associate Company; accordingly, reporting on the highlights of performance of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Venture companies and their contribution to the overall performance of the
Company during the period under report, is not required to be made.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Board of Directors

As at March 31, 2020, your Company has Four (4) Directors consisting of three (3) Non-Executive
Directors and One (1) Executive Director.
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Mr. Sandeep Menon (DIN: 02032154), Managing Director of the Holding Company was appointed as
the Whole Time Director designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company subject to members’
approval with effect from October 22, 2019. At the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the members of
the Company held on December 09, 2019, the members approved the appointment of Mr. Sandeep
Menon as the Whole Time Director for a term of five consecutive years effective from October 22,
20189, till October 21, 2024.

In terms of Section 152(6) of the Act read with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Sudhir
Variyar (DIN: 00168672), Non-Executive Director, shall retire by rotation and being eligible has offered
himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Based on the confirmations received in terms of the provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act
2013, none of the Directors of the Company are disqualified from being appointed/continuing as
Directors. :

None of the Directors have resigned from the Company during the year under review. During the year
under review, the Company was also not required to appoint any Independent Directors.

Key Managerial Personnel

Provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and consequent to the increase in paid-up share
capital of the Company from INR 2.50 Cores to INR 52.50 Crores on September 13, 2019, your
Company has appointed the following Key Managerial Personnel in the Company with effect from
October 22, 2019:

e Mr. Sandeep Menon, as a Whole Time Director
e Mr. Vikki Soni as the Chief Financial Officer
e Ms. Pallavi Bhambere as the Company Secretary

Accordingly, Mr. Sandeep Menon, Whole Time Director, Mr. Vikki Soni, Chief Financial Officer and Ms.
Pallavi Bhambere, Company Secretary are the Key Managerlal Personnel of the Company as at March
31, 2020, and as on the date of this report.

Compliance Officer

During the year under review, Mr. Vikki Soni, Chief Financial Officer of the Company was appointed as
the Compliance Officer of the Company effective from February 18, 2020, to monitor adherence to the
applicable laws and regulations and policies and procedures including but not limited to directions of
Reserve Bank of India and other concerned statutory and governmental authorities.

REGULATORY AND STATUTORY COMPLIANCES:
During the financial year under review, the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI") has issued various
Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines to Non-Banking Finance Company and your Company has

adhered to all the Circulars, Notifications and Guidelines issued by RBI from time to time.

Your Company .is also in compliance with the provisions of the Companles Act, 2013, including
Secretarial Standards and other applicable statutory requirements.

DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any de‘posits under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year ended March 31, 2020.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGOING:

As required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companiés
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company lays great emphasis on saving the cost of energy consumption.
Therefore, effective measures have been taken to check the loss of energy, as far as possible.

No technology has been developed or imported by way of foreign collaboration.

During the period under review, the foreign exchange earnings and out-go were as under:

Foreign Exchénge earnings Nil

Foreign Exchange spent ' Nil

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197{14) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

Mr. Sandeep Menon (DIN: 020232154) is the Managing Director of Vastu Housing Finance Corporation
Limited; Holding Company and is in receipt of managerial remuneration from the holdmg Company
under the provisions of Section 197(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Remaining Directors of the Company does not receive any remuneration or commission from the
Holding Company.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 for
the financial year ended March 31, 2020, is annexed herewith as "Annexure A”.

The Extract of Annual Return is also available on the website of the Company at
https://www.vastufinserve.com/view/annualreport.

BOARD MEETENGS[GENERAL MEETINGS:
4 (Four) Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2019-20. The Company held a minimum of

one board meeting in every quarter with a gap of not exceeding 120 days (Maximum period permitted)
between two consecutive board meetings. The details of which are given as under:

Sr. Board Meeting date Quarter Number of days from previous Board
No. Meeting

1 April 26, 2019 January - March ‘ 73

2 July 31, 2019 ' April-June 96

3 October 22, 2019 July -September 83

4 February 18, 2020 October- December -119

During fhe year, two general meetings took place in the form of Annual General Meeting on July 31,
2019, and an Extra-Ordinary General Meeting on December 09, 2019.
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Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and General Meetings:

Sr. Name of Director . Board - Attendance
No. i "
Meetmgs. Board Meeting Annual General | Extra-ordinary
held in : .
Director’s Meeting  held | General
on luly 31, 2019 | Meeting held
tenure ;
on December
09, 2019
1 Mr. Sandeep Menon 4 4 Yes " Yes.
2 Mr. Sudhir Variyar 4 4 Yes Yes
3 Mr. Harmanpreet Singh -4 3 No ' Yes
4 Mr. Vijay Kumar 4 3 (1 meeting No Yes
attended through
Telecon, and 1
meeting attended
through Video
Conference)
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: \

There are no material significant related party transactions made by the Company with the Promoters

or Directors, etc. which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Transactions entered into with Related Parties as provided in the Notes to Financial Statements did not
attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DETAILS OF TRANSACTIONS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WITH THE COMPANY:

During the period under review, no remuneration or sitting fees were paid to the Non-Executive
Directors of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS AND GUARANTEES UNDER SECTION 186:

During the Financial Year 2019-20, your Company has not made any investments or given any loans or
provided any guarantees in connection with loan falling under the purview of Section 186 of the

~Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility were not
applicable to the Company during the year under review.

_INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACLY:

The Company has proper and adequate systems of internal controls to ensure that all its assets are
safeguarded. Standardised operating procedures, policies and guidelines, including regular monitoring
procedures and self-assessment exercises, are the cornerstones of this important function.

The Company has a comprehensive Know Your Customer & Anti Money Laundering (KYC & AML) policy
(based on the RBI guidelines I provisions of the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002)

Page | 6




25.

286,

27.

28.

29.

34.

VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

incorporating the key elements of Customer Acceptance Policy, Customer ldentification Procedures,
Risk Management and Monitoring of Transactions. The policy is subject to an annual review and is duly
approved by the Board.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

‘There were no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund

as at March 31, 2020.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company has in place adequate financial controls related to financial statements, and these
financial controls are operating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

At the first Annual General Meeting of the Company held on July 31, 2019, M/s. T. R. Chadha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 006711N/N500028), have been appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 consecutive years, i.e. till the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the year ending on March 31, 2024,

The Auditors Report to the members for the year under review does not contain any qualification and
accordingly, explanations or comments by the Board are not required to be provided. Also, no frauds
were reported by the Auditors in their report on the Financial Statements of the Company under
Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and consequent to the increase
in paid-up share capital of the Company from INR 2.50 Cores to INR 52.50 Crores on September 13,
2019, M/s. Pradeep Purwar & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (Certificate of Practice No.
5918) were appointed as the Secretarial Auditor to conduct the audit of the secretarial records of the
Company for the financial year 2019-2020. '

The Report of Secretarial Auditors in the prescribed Form MR-3 does not contain any audit
observations and accordingly, explanations or comments by the Board are not required to be provided.
The Form MR-3 shall form part of the Board’s Report.

COST RECORDS:

The Company is not required to make and maintain cost records pursuant to Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:
In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board at its meeting held on April 29, 2020,

carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance as well as individual Directors and expressed
its overall satisfaction as to their performance for the Financial Year 2019-20.
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DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal
of sexual harassment and has in place a formal process for dealing with complaints of harassment and /
or discrimination against women.

The Board at its Meeting held on February 18, 2020, has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee
and accordingly, during the financial year under review, your Company has complied with provisions
relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company seeks to ensure that all complaints are resolved within defined timelines. Following is the
summary of Sexual Harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year 2019-20:

No. of complaints received: Nil
No. of complaints disposed off: Nil

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK:

Risks are an inherent feature of any business that can negatively impact the growth of the Company if
not handled .properly. The risk management techniques and processes enable early identification of
problematic loans. These include early default analysis, product analysis, and the probability of default.
Your Company works with strong analytic data to leverage areas of opportunity in a highly competitive
industry scenario.

As a Non-Banking Finance Company, the Company is exposed to various risks like credit risk, liquidity
risk and operational risk (technology, employee and transaction risk). To identify and mitigate these
risks, the Company has an effective Risk Management Control Framework that has been developed
encompassing all the above areas. The Board of the Company has adopted the Risk Management Policy
in order to assess, monitor and manage risk throughout the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013: '

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013; the Directors state to the best of their
knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them:

(a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accountmg standards been
followed and there were no material departures;

(b) that appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, and have made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and of the profit of the Company for that
period; '

(c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) that the annual accounts have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis; and

(e) that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place
and were adequate and operating effectively.
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS CR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND THE COMPANY’'S OPERATIONS IN
FUTURE:

During the year under review, there have not been any significant and material orders passed by the
Regulators/Courts/Tribunals, which will impact the going concern status and operations of the
Company in future. ' ‘

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your directors' place on record thanks to the regulator Reserve Bank of India, the Company's bankers,
the Govt. Authorities, Clients of the Company, staff Members of the Company for extending valuable
support to the Company.

Your Directors also gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. customers, dealers,
vendors and other business partners for the excellent support received from them during the year,
your involvement as shareholders is also greatly valued.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Vastu Finserve India Rrivate Limited

s

Sudhir Variyar’ Sandeep Menon

Place: Mumbai Director Whole Time Director
Date: April 29, 2020 DIN: 00168672 DIN: 02032154
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1. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAIlLS:

VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

ANNEXURE A TO THE BOARD'S REPORT

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014]

Form No. MGT-9

CIN

U65990MH2018PTC314935

Registration Date

28/09/2018

Name of the Company

VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Category / Sub-Category of the Company

A company limited by shares/Indian Non-Government Company.

Non-Banking Financial Company registered with the Reserve
Bank of India

Address of the Registered Office and

contact details

Unit Nos. 203 & 204, 2™ Floor, A-wing, Navbharat Estates,
Zakaria Bunder Road, Sewri {West) Mumbai, Maharashtra — 400
015

Phone: 022-02419 0911

Whether listed Company

Unlisted

Name, address and contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Link Intime India Private Limited
C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai - 400 083
Phone: +91 22 4918 6000 Fax: +91 22 4918 6060

ganesh.jadhav@linkintime.co.in

2. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACT!V!;FEES OF THE COMPANY:

www.linkintime.co.in

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated: -

SL. Name and Description of the | NIC Code of the Product/Service | % to the total turnover of
No. ‘[ main the Company
Products / Services :

1. Financial intermediation except | 64990 100.00

Insurance and Pension Funding ‘

3. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
SL. Name and address of | CIN / GLN Holding/ % of | Applicable -
No. the Company Subsidiary | shares | Section
/ Associate | held

1 Vastu Housing Finance | U65922MH2005PLC272501 | Holding 100 2(46)

Corporation Limited

Address: Unit Nos. 203
& 204, 2" Floor, A-wing,
Navbharat Estates,
Zakaria Bunder Road,
Sewri {West) Mumbai,
Maharashtra — 400 015
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4, SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as a percentage of Total Equity)
i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the | No. of Shares held at the end of the year | %
Shareholders year {(01.04.2019) (31.03.2020) of

Demat | Physical Total % of Demat | Physical | Total %of |cCha
Total Total | Ns€
Shares : Share | duri
ng
the
yea

A. Promoters

1) Indian

a) Individual / - - - ‘ - - - - - N
HUF '

b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -

c) State Govt. - - - - - - - - _
(s)

d) Bodies - - - - - - R - -
Corporate :

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

f) Any Other.... - : - - - - - - - -

Sub-Total - - - - - - - - -
(A)(1):

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - - - - - . - - - _
Individuals '

b) Other - - - - - - - - - -
Individuals

c) Bodies - - - - - . » - - -
Corporate

d) Banks / Fi - - - - - - - _ _

e) Any Other.... - - - - - - - - -

Sub-Total - - - - - - - - -
(A)2):

Total - - - - - - - - -
Shareholding of
Promoters (A) =

(A)(1)+{A)2)

B. Public
Shareholding

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual - - - - - - - - -
Funds / UT!

b) Banks / Fi - - - - - - L. - -

c) Central Govt. - - - - - - : - - -

d) State Govt. T - - - - - - - _
{s)

e) Venture - - - - - -
Capital Funds

f) Insurance - - - - - -
Companies

g) Flls ' - - - - - -

h) Foreign - - -t - -] .
Venture Capital |- >
Funds
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the

year (01.04.2019)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year %

(31.03.2020)

of
cha

Demat | Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

nge

duri

ng
the
yea

% of
Total
Share

i) Others
(specify)

Sub-Total
(B)(1):

(2) Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corporate

i) Indian

-| 24,99,998

24,959,998

199.99

5,24,99
,978

5,24,99,978

99.95

ii} Overseas

b} Individual

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital up to Rs.
1 Lakh

0.01

22

22

0.01

i} Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in excess
of Rs. 1 Lakh

¢) Other {
Specify)

i) Non-Resident
(Non-Rep)

i) Non-Resident
(Rep)

i} Trust

iv) OCB

v) Clearing
Members

Sub-Total
(B)(2):

-| 25,00,000

25,00,000

100

5,24,99
,978

22

5,25,00,000

100

Total  Public
Shareholding
(B)= (BX1)
+(B)(2)

- | 25,00,000

25,00,000

* 100

5,24,99
,978

2

5,25,00,000

100 | 0.0

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total

- | 25,00,000

25,00,000

100

5,24,99
,978

22

5,25,00,000

100

(A+B+C)
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ii. Shareholding of Pfomoters — Not Applicable

Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the | No. of Shares held at the end of the | % of the
Name year (01.04.2019) year (31.03.2020) change in
No. of % oftotal | % of Shares No. of % of .% of Shares sharehol
Shares shares of Pledged / Shares total Pledged / ding
the encumbered shares of | encumbered | during
Company to total shares the to total shares the year
Company

ili. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding - Not Applicable

Shareholding At
beginning of the year

the | Cumulative shareholding during the year

No. of % of total No. of
Shares shares of Shares
the Company

the Company

% of total shares of

At the beginning of the vyear
(01.04.2019)

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity
etc):

At the end of the year (31.03.2020)

: E

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

ADRs):
Sr. Name Shareholding Date Increase/ - Reason Cumulative
No. Decrease in shareholding duringl
shareholding the year
01.04.2019 -
. 31.03.2020
No. of % of No. of % of
Shares at total shares total
the shares share
beginning of the s of
(01.04.2019) | Compa the
‘ Jend of the ny Comp
year any
(31.03.2020)

1. Vastu Housing 24,99,998 99.99 | 01.04.2019 ) 24,99,998 | 99.99
Finance 13.09.2019 4,99,99,980 | Allotment 5,24,99,978 | 99.99
Corporation .

Limited 5,24,99,978 99.99 | 31.03.2020 5,24,99,978 | 99.99
v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sr. Name Shareholding Date Increase/ | Reason Cumulative shareholding
No. Decrease during the year
in 01.04.2019- 31.03.2020

No. of | % of total sharehol No. of | % of total
Shares at | shares of ding shares | shares of the
the the Company
beginning Company ’
(01.04.201
9)/end of
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the  vyear
(31.03.202
0)
A. Directors
1. Mr. Sandeep 1 0.00004 | 01.04.2019 1 0.00004
Menon -
“Whole-Time
Director
13.09.2019 20 | Allotment 21 0.00004
21 0.00004 | 31.03.2020 21 0.00004
2. Mr. Sudhir - 1 0.00004 | 01.04.2019 1 0.00004
Variyar — Non-
Executive
Director
1 0.000002 | 31.03.2020 1 0.000002
Note: - Apart from abovementioned Directors, no other Directors held any shares of the Company during
the year under review.
B. Key Managerial Personnel _
NOT APPLICABLE as none of the Key Managerial Personnel held any shares of the Company during the year
under review. .

5. INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:
(Amount in INR in lakhs)

Secured Unsecured | Deposits | Total

Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding

deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year

i. Principal Amount - - - |-
i. Interest due but not paid - - - -
iii. Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total ( i+ ii+ i) ! - - ~ -
Change in Indebtedness during the financial | - - - -
year , -
Addition - - - -
Reduction . - - - -
Net Change - - - -
Indebtedness at the end of the financial | - - - -
year
i. Principal Amount : - - - -
ii. Interest due but not paid - - ~ - -
iii. Interest accrued but not due - - |- -
Total ( i+ fi+ iii) 7 - - -

6. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors or Manager: Mr. Sandeep Menon — Whole-
Time Director (w.e.f. October 22, 2019):
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(Amount in INR in lakhs)
Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Whole Time Total Amount
No Director
Mr. Sandeep Menon

1 | Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - -
Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites under Section - -
17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961 |
(¢) Profits in lieu of salary under Section - ' -
17(3) Income Tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Options* - -

3 Sweat Equity - -
4 | Commission _
- as % of profit : _ - -

- others, specify.... - -
5 | Others, please specify - -
Total (A) _ : - -
Ceiling as per Act 5% of the Net Profit of the Company

B. Remuneration to other Directors:
(Amount in INR in lakhs)

Sr. | Particulars of Other Non-Executive Directors Total Amount
No | Remuneration

Mr Vijay Kﬁmar Mr. Sudhir Variyar | Mr. Harmanpreet
Singh

1 | Independent
Director ]
-Fee for attending | - ' - - -
Board/Committee ' :
Meetings
Commission - - - -
- Others, please | - - - -
specify
- | Total (1) e ‘ - ' - -
2 | Other Non- | - - - -
Executive ‘
Directors
-Fee for attending | - - . | - -
Board/Committee
Meetings
Commission - - -
- Others, please | - - -
specify
Total (2) - - - -
Total B= 142 - - - ‘ ~ -
Total Managerial | - - -
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per | 1% of the Net Profit of the Company
Act

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD:
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VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(Amount in INR in lakhs)

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No. Company Chief Financial
Secretary-Ms. Officer- Mr. Vikki
Pallavi Bhambere | Soni (w.e.f. Total Amount
(w.e.f. October | October 22,
22, 2019) 2019)

1. | Gross Salary » - - -
(a) Salary as per provisions contained - - -
in Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act,
1961

(b) Value of perquisites under Section
17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
Section 17(3) Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Options

3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
- as % of profit

- Others, specify....
5 Others, please specify 7
Total o - - -

7. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of | Brief Description | Details - of | Authority Appeal made, if
the Penalties/ [RD/ . NCLT/ | any {give details)
Companies Punishment/ COURT]
Act Compounding
Fees imposed

A. COMPANY
Penalty v
Punishment None
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment None
Compounding
OTHER OFFICER IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

None

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Vastu Finserve India, Private Limited

S

4%’ ‘ &
Place: Mumbai Sudhir Variyar andeep Menon
Date: April 29, 2020 ' Director Whole Time Director

DIN: 00168672 DIN: 02032154
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s Pra(leep Purwar & Associates

Company Secretaries

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For the Financial Year ended 31°* March, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

UDIN: FO05769B000147273

To,
The Members,
Vastu Finserve India Private Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Vastu Finserve India
Private Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March, 2020 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March, 2020
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder:

(ii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(i) Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Non-Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial
Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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Pracleep Purwar ¢ Associates

Company Secretaries

Provisions of the following Acts, Regulations and Guidelines were not applicable to the
Company under the financial year under report:

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;

(i) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and
dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998;
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ﬂs Pradeep Purwar & Associates

Company Secretaries

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned above, to the extent
applicable.

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and—independent
Pirectors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance in most cases and
consents for convening the meetings at a shorter notice were obtained in a few
instances and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and there were no dissenting members’ views which
were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period:

(i)  The Reserve Bank of India issued Certificate of Registration as Non-Banking Finance
Company (‘NBFC’) to the Company on 22" April, 2019.

(i) The Board granted its authority to offer upto 20 Crore Equity Shares of INR 10/-
each to the existing Equity Shareholders of the Company on Rights basis pursuant

to the provisions of Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 by passing of a
Board Resolution on 26 April, 2019.

(iii) The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from INR 2.50 Crores
to INR 100 Crores and consequently, the Capital Clause of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company was altered by passing a Special Resolution at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 31% July, 2019.
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Pradeep Purwar & Associates

(iv)

(V)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xii)

Company Secretaries

The Other Objects Clauses of the Memorandum of Association of the Company
were altered by addition of sub clauses 41, 42 and 43 after the existing sub clause
40 of clause 3(b) — ‘Matters which are necessary for furtherance of the objects
specified in clause 3(a)’ of the Memorandum of Association; by passing a Special
Resolution at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 31°" July, 2019.

The borrowing limits of the Company were approved and adopted upto an amount
of INR 500 Crores pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013, by passing a Special Resolution at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 31% July, 2019.

Authority to create charge on the properties of the Company not exceeding INR
500 Crores pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013, was accorded to the Board of Directors by passing a Special Resolution at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 31 July, 2019.

In supersession of the resolution passed by the Board on 26" April, 2019, the
Board granted its authority to offer upto 9.75 Crore Equity Shares of INR 10/- each
to the existing Equity Shareholders of the Company on Rights basis pursuant to the
provisions of Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 by passing of a Board
Resolution on 31°' July, 2019 and offer letter was issued to existing shareholders on
6" September, 2019.

The Board at its meeting held on 31° July, 2019 noted co-origination of loans with
scheduled commercial banks for creation of loans.

The Board vide its resolution passed by circulation approved allotment of 5 Crores
Shares of INR 10/- each for cash at par on rights basis to existing shareholders ot
the Company on 13" September, 2019.

Mr. Vikki Soni (Membership No. 148585) was appointed as the Chief Financial

Officer of the Company designated as Key Managerial Personnel with effect from
22" October, 2019.

Ms. Pallavi Bhambere (Membership No. A49763), Company Secretary of the

Holding Company was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company
designated as Key Managerial Personnel with effect from 22" October, 2019.

Mr. Sandeep Menon (DIN: 02032154), Managing Director of the Holding Company
was appointed as the Whole-time Director of the Company designated as Key
Managerial Personnel for a term of 5 consecutive years commencing from 22"
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(xiii)

(Xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Company Secretaries

October, 2019 at such remuneration and on such terms and conditions as
mentioned in the Employment Agreement approved by the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on 22" October, 2019., by passing of an Ordinary Resolution at
the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 9" December, 2019.

Authority to raise funds through Private Placement of Unsecured/ Secured
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures/ Bonds pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 42 & 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 for an amount not exceeding INR 500
Crores, in or more tranches during the period of one year from the date of passing
of the resolution, by passing a Special Resolution at the Extra-ordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 9™ December, 2019.

The Board at its meeting held on 18™ February, 2020 accorded its approval to
enter into and execute an Agreement of Management and Administrative Services
with Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited, Holding Company, for receiving
Management and Administrative services from the Holding Company.

The Board at its meeting held on 18" February, 2020 accorded its approval for
ESOP Plan of Financial Year 2019-20 for the employees of the Company.

The Board at its meeting held on 18™ February, 2020 appointed Mr. Vikki Soni
Chief Financial Officer to act as the Compliance Officer of the Company with
immediate effect to monitor adherence to the applicable laws and regulations and
directions of Reserve Bank of India and other concerned statutory and
governmental authorities.

For Pradeep Purwar & Associates

Company Secretaries

[Unique Identification No.: S2003MH071600]
PR: 599/2019]

L

Pradeep Kumar Purwar

Proprietor
Place: Thane FCS No. 5769
Date: 6" April, 2020 - CoP No. 5918
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. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Vastu Finserve India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1. Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Vastu Finserve India
Private Limited (‘Company’}), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Change in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’), gives the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and gives a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss (including other comprehensive income), changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind
AS financial statements.

3. Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to Note 44 to the Ind AS financial statement, which describes the extent to
which the Covid-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s financial statement will depend on
the future developments, which are highly uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Corporate / Regd. Office : B-30, Connaught Place, Kuthiala Building, New Delhi — 110001
Phone : 43259900, Fax : 43259930, E-mail : delhi@trchadha.com
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4. Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in Company’s Annual report but
does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

5. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS
Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a hlgh Ve

Corporate / Regd. Office : B-30, Connaught Place, Kuthiala Building, New Delhi — 110001
Phone : 43259900, Fax : 43259930, E-mail : delhi@irchadha.com

Branches at: < AHMEDABAD < BENGALURU < CHENNAI <+ GURGAON < HYDERABAD < PUNE < TIRUPAT ARIDRE




T R Chadha & Co LLP

./—-————-—\ﬂ\\.
Chartered Accountants "
502, Marathon Icon, —
Off. Ganpatrao Kadam Marg | ]

Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park
Lower Parel, Mumbai — 400 013
Tel.: 022-49669000
Fax.: 022-49669023
Email: mumbai@trchadha.com

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial Ind AS
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation. "
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

7. Reporting on comparatives in case of First Ind AS Financial statements
The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019,
included in these financial statements, have been prepared after adjusting previously issued
financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS.

8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

a. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

b. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

i. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

iii. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

iv. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

v. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31+
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31* March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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vi. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure B'.

Vii. The provision of section 197 read with schedule V to the Act are not applicable
to the Company since the Company has not paid any remuneration to directors
- during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

viii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

¢) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 006711N/N500028

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 29% April ‘20
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- Annexure A to the Auditor’s Report

The annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the member of Vastu Finserve
India Private Limited (‘the Company’) on the financial statement for the year ended 31+ March
2020, we report that;

(@ In respect of Fixed Assets

a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situtation of its fixed assets.

b) The management has carried the physical verification of the items of fixed assets during
the period. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) According to the informations and explanations given to us, there is no Immovable
Property in the books of accounts of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph
3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii)  The nature of business of the company does not require to have any physical inventory.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(iii) The Company has not granted any secured or unsecured loan to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into
any transaction in respect of loans, investments, guarantee and security which attracts
compliance to provisions of section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any
deposits which are covered under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Act for the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of Statutory Dues:f/ ~
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a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing its undisputed statutory dues (with
respect to amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account) including Provident Fund,
Employees State insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax, cess and other material
statutory dues (where applicable) to the appropriate authorities. There were no material
undisputed dues payable, outstanding as on 31 March, 2020 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no amounts in respect of income tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise or value added tax that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not availed loans or borrowing from a financial
institution, bank, Government or from issue of debenture. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer
or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, paragraph
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(69) According to the information and explanation given to us, no material fraud on the Company
or any fraud on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(xi) The provision of section 197 read with schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the
Company, since the Company has not paid any remuneration to directors during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under patagraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xiii) As per the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.
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. (xv)  As per the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him during
the year and hence the provisions of Section 192 of the Act is not applicable to the company.

(xvi) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and it has obtained certificate of registration dated 22 April 2019.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 006711N/N500028

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

UDIN: 20075363AAAAAJ6031

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 29* April, 2020.
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- ‘Annexure B’ to Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements of Vastu Finserve
India Private Limited (‘the Company’) under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

. Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement of Vastu Finserve
India Private Limited (‘the Company’) as of 31 March, 2020, in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
31t March, 2020, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our _auditg
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Chartered Accountants t

_internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
€erTor. '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company.

Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthaorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 006711N/N500028

(\[(\K/\a/) W=
Vikas Kumar

Partner
Membership No. 075363

UDIN: 20075363AAAAAJ6031
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Dodt.  29.v- 2020
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VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2020

{Fin Lakh)
Az at b g at -_
Note No.|  march31,2020 | March 21, 2019
|
1 Financial Assets
a Cash and Cazh Equivalents 5 E7 43 2.0
b Loans B 343 28 -
o | Invesimenis 7 4640 18 -
o Cither Financial Assels ] 857 4.88
5 064.26 230.97
2 |Non-Financial Assets
a Currant Tax Assets (Net) g 07a .54
b | Deferred Tax Assets (Met) 10 260 -
o Property. Flant and Equipment 11 B15
d | Cther IMangible Assets 12 21 96 1.40
[ Right of Lize Asset 13 154 90 -
f Cither Mon-financial Assets 14 1605 1.85
e 204.41 23.80
3 |Assets held for sale _ -
TOTAL 5. 268.66 254.77
Il [LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 |Financial Liabilities
a | Trade Payables 15
Total Cutstanding dues lo Micro and Small Enterprises - -
Total Dutstanding dues to Creditors other than Micro and Small 6 38 -
Enterprizes
b Other Financial Liabilities 16 PR 4.47
210.01 4.47
2 |Non-Financial Liabilities
a Deferred Tax Liabiliies (Net) 0 - 015
b Pravisions 17 0594 =
I Dther Mon-Financial Liabilities 18 2.51 oot
3.76 0186
EQUITY |
a Equity Share Capital 14 5,250.00 250.00
[ b Other Equity 20 195.10) 0.14
| 5,054.90 | 250.14
| .
TOTAL 5,268.66 | 254.77
The accompanying nates form an integral part of the financial statemeants 110 48

As per our report of even date attached

ForMis TR Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 067 11N/NBI0ZE
Charered Accountants

~ !
\x‘/\ whed \/(U‘

Vikas Kumar
Farnner
Memberzhip Mo, 075363

Date: April 29, 2020
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Sahdeap Menon
Whola Timea Direclor
(DM 02032154

ikKi Soni
Chief Financial Officer

Vastu Finserve India Private Limited
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Sudhir Yariyar
Crirecior
(DM D0168672)

y A Bk
o
Yo

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

(¥Fin Lakh)
IR For the year ended. |  For the year ended
: ¢ Particulars Mote No. 4 3 2
et & s March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
| |INCOME |
Rewvenue from Operations |
a | Interest Income 21 20.87 [
b Fees and Commission Income 22 152
= Met Gain on Fair WValue changes 23 136.09 B
@ | Other Operating Incomea 24 018 | -
Total Revenue from Operations 160.67 | -
2 |Other Income 25 208 542
Total Income 162.74 542
Il |[EXPENSES
a |Finance Costs 2B 11.33 .01
tr |Impairment on Financial Instruments 27 176 -
¢ |Employee Benefits Expense 26 161.95 -
d |Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairement 11,1213 30.68 067 |
e |Cther Expenses 28 - 158,04 445 |
Total Expenses 360.74 513
Il |PROFIT BEFORE TAX {198.00) 0.29
IV |TAX EXPENSES
a |Current Tax - -
b |Deferred Tax {2.75) 015
Total Tax Expense 30 {2.75) 0,15
V |PROFIT AFTER TAX {195.24) 0.14
VI |OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not he reclassified to Profit or Loss
a Actuarial losz an Post Retiremeant Benefit Plans -
b Income tax on above =
Total Other Comprehensive Income - -
VIl [TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [195.24) _0.14 |
Wil
EARMINGS PER EQUITY SHARE H
{Maminal Value of F10 each)
a |Basic (¥} (0.65) 0.01
b |Diluted (¥} [D.65) 0.01
The accaompanying naotes form an integral part of the financial staterments 1to 48

As per cur report of even date attached

For Mis TR Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration Mo - 0671 1N/NS00028
Chartered Accountants

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Mambership Mo, 075363

Cate: April 29, 2020
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of

Directars of

Vastu Finserve India Private Limited

Y

;{i‘t P

Sandeep Menon
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 02032154}

Soni
Chief Financial Officer

Lty

Sudhir Variyar
Director
(DIN: 00168672

et
':“IH"*_“:E*"' :

o

Pallavi Bhamberea

Campany Secretary




A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,

2020

Equity Share Capital
B OTHER EQUITY

Balance as at April 1. 2018
Changas in accounting policy/prior period erors
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting pericd

Proft for e year

Drinesr Carnprehensive Incame far the year
Total Comprehensive Income for the vear
|z5we of share capital

Diwidend including tax on dvidena
Iransferred from rstained earmings
Received during 1he year

Employee Stock Dplion Schemes

|Balance as at March 31, 2019

Balance as at April 1, 2019
Changes in aocounting pobey'prior penad o

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period

Profi Tor Ihe year

Other Comprehensive [ncome for e year
Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Issua of share capial

Cevidend mcluding tsx on dwidend
Tranaferred from retained earmings
Rscesrvercd during the yesar

Employes Stock Cpdion Scheme

Balance as at March 31, 2020

R {Fin Lakh}
§Tr) ey S s :
IC of RBI Act, 1934 read| ha . | Retsined Eamings
| with 36(t)viin of | Justuning hocoame |- s
e + __.,E., o o
D14 014
014 014
_ -
[ D4 T
& 014 a.14
5 014 0.14
(195 74} (195 245
5 {18510} 195,10}
3 - - (18510 18540

AL per our repor of even dale atliched

For Wis T R Chadha & Co LLP
Charlered Accounianis
FRM : 00&7 1 1N/NSD0028

._i.lf_t, P

\ TaA o)
Vikas Kurmar
Fartner
Mambership Mo, 075363

Date: April 28, 2020
Face: Mumbai

andeep Menon
_._..___..Qm Time Direcior

: 02032154)
&

KT Soni

Chead Financial Oifices

| on behalf of the Board of Directors of

tu Finserve India Private Limited 7_LLI\AL

Sudhir ._.__m:u_m-
Larector
(DIN: 00168672

N p _.n
e
o
Pallavi Bhambera
Company Secretary



VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended Mach 31, 2020

(¥in Lakh)
T, SRSt ; For the year ended |  For the year endead
i S e NoteMNo.|  March31,2020 |  March 31, 2019
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit ! {Loss) before Taxation (198.00} 0.29
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 19.12 714 0.67
Depreciation and Amaortisation expensss (Right of Use Asssts) 13 23.54 -
Provision for impairment on Financial Instruments (ECL) 7 1.75 -
Met gain on fair value changes (unrealised) 23 4 B6) -
Met gain on far value changes (realised) 23 [131.22) -
Interest on fixed deposits 28 {6.548) (054}
Interest expense on lease liabilty 28 11.27 -
]
|Operating ProfitiiLoss) before Working Capital changes {297.34) 0.42
|
Maovements in Working Capital:
{Increase) ! Decrease in Financial Assets a (3.49) 4 88}
(Increase) / Decrease in Non-Financial Assets 14 (14.20) (1.85)
Increase ¢ {Decrease) in Financial Liakilities 18 47 58 4.47
Increase ! {Decreasa) in Mon-Financial Liabilities 18 375 0.01
Cash generated from / (used in) operations (263.70) :1 .EIH;}'
Income Taxes paid (net) 8,30 (0.21) (0543
Gross Cash flow from Operating Activities (263.91) [2.37)
Leans Disbursed to Customer ) {353.06)
Loans Repaid by Customer 6 303 -
MET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A {613.93) {2.37)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received on Bank deposits 25 6.95 0.54
3 i 5 22 .07
Purchase/Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 2 (13.83) (2207}
Investments in mutual fund units T {18,022.88) -
Sale of mutual fund units 7 13,516,798 -
MNET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B {4,512.98) [21.53)
Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds fram issue of equity shane 19 £.000.00 250.00
Fayment of lease liabilities 16 {3174} -
|
WET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 4.968.26 250.00
MWet (Decrease)/ Increase in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {158.66) 226.09
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2e6.09 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 6743 226.09

7




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended Mach 31, 2020

. {Fin Lakh)}
; S e : Note No. For the year ended | For the year ended
= i e March 31, 2020 | ' March 31, 2019
Cnmpumnts of Cash and Bank Balance at the year end
Cash on hand 1.54
Balances with banks:
- In Current Accounts 65.84 1600
-Im Cagh Cradit Accounts - -
- In Deposit accounts with eriginal maturity of 3 months or less . 210.00
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 67.43 226.09
Operational Cash Flow towards Interest
Interest received 14,82
Interest paid - =
1

Az par our report of even date attached

For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registraton Mo 067 11NN

v..mé

Fartner
Membership Mo. 075383

Date April 29, 2020
Flace: Mumbai

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Wastu Finserve India Private Limited

~ % |

\ )

1 Tt
Sandeep Menon Sudhir vﬁi}';

Whale Time Director Directar
(DIN: 00168672}

a

=
.;-F';;

Pallavi Bhambere
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

Vastu Finserve India Private Limited {the Company) is a deemed public Company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (MBFC) engaged in
the business of providing financial services, to lend and advance money and assets of all kinds ar give credit on any terms
or mode and with or without security to any individual, firm, body corporate or any other entity, to enter into guarantees
contracts of indemnity and suretyship of all kinds, and to secure or guarantes in any manner and upon any terms thEl
_payment of any surm of money or the performance of any obligation by any persan, firm or Company, The Company was
incorporated on September 28, 2018 under the Companies Act 2013. The Company is registered as a Mon-Systemically

Important Nan-Deposit taking NBFC as defined under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India {'REBI') Act, 1534 with effect
from April 22, 2018,

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

A) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company are prepared under the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™ (to the extent notified). Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act
read with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued after
that.

Effective April 01, 2019, the Company has adapted all the Ind AS and the adoption was carried out In accordance with [nd
AS 101 - ‘First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’, with Septernber 28, 2018 (Date of Incorporation) as the
transition date. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Campanies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP) (Indian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles) and the Reseve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company — Mon-Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018 as amended from
time to time and various guidelines issued by RBI o the extent applicable, which was the previous Generally Accepted
Accounting Principal {GAAP),

The financial statements presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional and the presentation gurrency and all values
rounded to the nearest lakh. except when otherwise indicated.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision to
an existing Ind AS requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.Accounting Policies have been consistently

applied except where a newly-issued Ind AS is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Ind AS requires a change in the
accounting policy hitherto in use.

Disclosures as required in terms of Master Circular — 'Non-Banking Financial Companies — Corporate Governance {Reserve
Bank} Directions, 2015 RE|/2014-15/632-DNBR (PD) CC Mo 040/02.01.001/2014-15, June 03, 2015, have been prepared
based on previous GAAP, and have peen presented solely based on the information campiled by the Management. Referto
Mote no. 41, 42 & 43,

B) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for specific
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting penod. as explained in the accounting
policies below:

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services,




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betweean
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
anather valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes inta account the
characteristics of the asset or liability that market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and disclosure purposes in these financial
staternents is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS
102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind A5 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value in use under Ind AS 3G,

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2. or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the far value measurement in its entirety,
which are as follows:
» Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilties that the Company can
access at measurement date.
« Level 2 Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset ar liability.
either directly or indirectly,
+ Level 3 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities,

C) Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in Schedule
Il to the Act. The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the reguirements of Ind AS 7
“Statement of Cash Flows".

2.2 Significant Accounting Policies

A) Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

i. Property. plant and equipment (PPE}
FPE are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item flows to the Campany, and

the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost comprises of the purchase_ price, and any attributable ::c_:st af
bringing the asset to its working condition for intended use net of tax/duty credits availed, less accumulated depreciation

and cumulative impairment if any.

Depreciation/amartization is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lower of the estimated useful lives of respective
assets prescribed under the Schedule || to the Companies Act, 2013 or as estimated by Management as under:

- Category of Assets

Femises

Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years
Computer Hardware 3 Years
Leasehold Improvements 3 Years
Office Eguipment £ years

Assets costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of capitalization.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted far on a prospective basis.
An item of PPE is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise fram the

continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the dispasal or retirement of an item af_F'PE is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

ii. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
flow to the enterprise. and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at ariginal cost nat
of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Administrative and other
general overhead expenses that are individually attributable to the acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and
capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 3 years. The method of
amartisation, useful life are reviewed at end of accounting year with the effect of changes in the astimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Amortisation on impaired assets is provided by adjusting the amortisation charge in the remaining pericds sa as to
allocate the asset's revised carrying amount aver its remaining useful life,

An intangible asset is derecognised an disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS

Faor transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of PPE and Intangible Assets
recognised as of Septmber 1, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as
its deemead cost as of the transition date.

B) Impairment on Non-Financial Assets

As at the end of each year, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its non-Financial Assets that is PPE and Intangible
Assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss.

An asset is considered as impaired when on the balance sheet date there are indications of impairment in the carrying
amount of the assets, or where applicable the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount {i.e. the higher of the assets' net selling price and value in use). Carrying amount is reduced to the level af
recaverable amaunt, and the reduction is recagnized as an impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit} is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. But so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-
genarating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit ar loss

C) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the economic benefits probably flow to the Company. and the revenue can be
reliably measured, and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.

i, Interest Income

Interest income on financial instruments at amortised cost iz recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account
the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate (EIR) applicable. Interest on financial instruments measured as at
fair value is included within the fair value movement during the pericd.

The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial instrument through the egpected life
af the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a sharter period. to the net carrying amaunt of the financial instrument.
The future cash flows are estimated, taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the Financial Instrument (for example, prepayment aptions)
and includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are incremental and directly attributable to thg
specific lending arrangement, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts, For financial assets at FWTPL {Fair
Walue Through Profit or Loss), transaction casts are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss at initial recognition.




D)

E)

VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired financial assets
Fl.e. gt thg amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-
!mpa!red financial assets, the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-
|mpa|red financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs). However
no interest has been charged on credit impaired loans as a matter of prudence. . I

Overdue interest and other ancillary charges in respect of loans are recognized upon realisation.
ii. Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income include fees and commitment charges other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The

Company recognises the other fee and commission income under the terms and conditions of the relevant
contract/agreement.

iii. Investment Income

The gains/ losses an sale of investments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss an the trade date. Gain or
loss on sale of investments is determined after consideration of cost an a first in first out (FIFO) basis.

iv, Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established; probably, the economic
henefits associated with the dividend flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
Generally, when shareholders approve the dividend.

Foreign Currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Income and expenses in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactian.

Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the functional currency spat rates of
exchange at the reporting date, and exchange gains and losses arising on settlemant and restatement are recognized in the
Statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Mon-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is rreated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of
the item [i.e.. translation differences on items whaose fair value gain or loss is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
{'OCI') or profit or loss are also recognized in ©CI ar profit or loss, respectively).

Leasing

The Company's lease asset primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a
lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains. a lease if the contract conveys the right ta cantrol the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right ta control
the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether-

i the cantract involves the use of an identified asset:
ii. the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease; and

iii. the Campany has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a Right-of-Use Asset (ROL) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months ar less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense.

The Right-of-Use Assets are initially recognized at cost. which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciati n_@&d impairment losses.




F

G

—

T

VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Right-of-Use Assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
tgrr'n and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU Assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the
recoverable amount {i.ethe higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an indiﬁdual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. .

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
paymer_‘uts are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incramental
borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU Asset if the Company
changes its assessment whether it will exercise an extension or a terminatian aption.

Lease liability and ROU Asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows

Borrowing Costs

Barrowing :qsts that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets as defined in Ind AS
23 - 'Borrowing Costs' are capitalized as a part of costs of such assets A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

Interest expenses are calculated using the EIR and all other Borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the peried in which they are incurred.

Employee Benefits
i. Share-based payment arrangements

The stock options granted to employees pursuant to the Company's Stock Options Schemes, are measurad at the fair
value of the options at the grant date. The fair value of the options is treated as discount and accounted as employees’
compensation cost over the vesting period on a straight-line basis. The amount recognised as expense in each year is
arrived at based on the number of grants expected to vest. it a grant lapses after the vesting period, the cumulative
discount recognised as expense in respect of such grant is transferred to the General Reserve within Other Equity.

ii. Retirement Benefit Costs and Termination Benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined cantribution scheme. The Company has no abligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
echeme as an employee benefit expense when an emplayee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received befare the balance shest date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contributian already paid
exceads the contribution due for services raceived before the balance sheet date, then the excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment leads to, for example, 2 reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined Benefit Obligation Plan
The Company's Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972 are determined an the basis af actuarial

valuation made at the end of each Financial Year using the Projected Unit Credit method.

The Company's net obligation in respect of Defined Benefit Plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current and prior perieds, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any
Plan Assets. The calculation of Defined Benefit Ohbligations is performed annually by a gualified actuary using the
Projected Unit Credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Campany, the recognised asset is
limited to the present value of ecancmic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan
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Re-measurement of the Net Defined Eenefit Liakility, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on Plan
Aszszetz (excluding interest) and the effect of the Asset Ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in
Dther. Comprehensive Income (OCI). Met interest expense { {income) on the Met Defined Liability / [ Asset) is computed by
applying the Fliscount rate used to measure the Met Defined Liability / (Asset), to the Net Defined Liability / {Asset) at the
start of the Financial Year after taking into accaunt any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments during

thadyliaar. Met interest expense and other expenses related to Defined Benefit Plans are recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss.

WhF.l_n the heneﬁts_;. of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to pasl
service or the gain or lass on curtailment is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settliement ocours,

iii. Short-term Employes Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees are recognised during the year when the employee renders the service. & liability is recagnised for the amount
expa_-cted to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These benefits include performance
incentive etc. which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders
the related service,

iv. Other Long-term Employee Benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employes benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reparting date,

H) Income Tax

The Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax. Current and deferred taxes are recognised
in the Staterment of profit and lass. except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. in which case. the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

i. Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year of the Company, Taxable profit differs from 'profit
before tax' as reported in the Statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using applicable tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,

ii. Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and lighilities in the
Company's financial statements and the correspanding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Defarred tax
assets are generally recognised, for all temporary deductible differences, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits are available against which those temporary deductible differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liahilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arizes from the initial recognition (other than in a business
cambination) of assets and liakilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Also,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises fram the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Company is able to contral the reversal of temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assels arising from deductible temporary differences
aszociated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which it can utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits are available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred Tax Liabilities and Assets are measured at the tax rates that are expectad to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled, or the asset is realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting pericd.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are off-set when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off Current Tax Assets
against Current Tax Liabilities and when they relate to Income Taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its Current Tax Assets and Liakilities on a net basis.

[} Goods and Service Tax Input Credit

Goods and Services Tax input eredit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the supply of goods or service
received is acoounted and when there is no uncertainty in availing ¢ utilising the credits.

J} Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
i. Provisions

Pravisions are recognised only when:
i. an entity has a present abligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
ii. itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
iii. @ reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation.

These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Long term provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liakility. The umwinding
of the discount is recognised as a finance cost. A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the cantract Before a
provision is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

ii. Contingent Liability
Contingent Liability is disclosed in case of.

i a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and

ii. a present abligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.

iii. Contingent Asset
Contingent Assets are not recognized in the Financial Statements. They are disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable

K} Commitments
Cammitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:
i Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not pravided for;
ii. Uncalled liability on shares and ather investments partly paid; .
iii. Other non-cancellable commitments. if any, to the extent they are cansidered material and relevant in the apinion of
management.

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed ta avoid
excessive details.

L) Statement of Cash Fows
Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow
from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:
i. Changes during the period in inventories and operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature:
ii. Non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and
i Al other iterms far which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flaws.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not
available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet
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M} Segments

The Campany's main business is financing by way of loans for various purposes. All other activities of the Company revolve

around the main business. This in the context of Ind AS 108 = 'Operating Segments' where reporting is considered to
constitute one reportable segment.

M) Financial Instrument

i

. Recognition of Financial Instruments
Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets and liabilities are recagnized
when the company becomes the party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets primarily
comprise of loans and advances, deposits, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Financial lighilities primarily
comprise of borrowings and trade payables

ii. Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs and revenues
that are directly attributable to the acguisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at FWTPL} are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, an initial recognition. Transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the statement of profit or loss.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recegnition, the Company will account for such difference as follows:
if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical azset or liakility or based on a valuation
technigue that uses only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised in Statement of Profit and loss
on initial recognition (i.e. day 1 profit or loss),

in all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 1 profit or loss will be
deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or lighility).

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a rational basis,
only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into account
when pricing the asset or liability.

.Financial Assets
Subsequent Measurement
All recagnised financial assets that are within the scope of Ind AS 109 are required to be subseguently measured at
amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity's business madel for managing the Financial Assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the Financial Assets.

Classification

Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that

have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPEI),

are subsequently measured at amortised cost;

« Al other Debt Instruments (e.g. Debt Instruments managed on 3 fair value basis, or held for sale) and equity investments
are subsequently measured at FWVTPL

However, the Company may make the following irrevocable election / designation at initial recognition of a Financial
Asset on an asset-by-asset basis:

s+ The Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment that is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 1032 -
'Business COmbination' applies, in OCI; and

» The Company may irrevocably designate a Debt Instrument that meets the amortised cost or FWTOCI criteria as
measured at FWTPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair value

A Financial Asset is held for trading if:

s it has been acquired principally for the purpese of gelling it in the near term: or

= on initial recagnition, it is part of a portfolia of identified Financial Instruments that the Company manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

« it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.
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Debt Instruments at Amortised Cost or at FYTOC|
The Com_pa_nw_.r assesses the classification and measurement of a Financial Asset based on the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the individual asset basis and the Company's business model for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI. its contractual terms should give rise to cash
flows that are meeting SPP| test.

For SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the Financial Asset at initial recognition. That principal amount may change
aver the life of the Financial Asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Interest consists of consideration far the time
value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
far other basic lending risks and costs. as well as a profit margin The SPPI assessment is made in the currency in which
the Financial Asset is denominated.

Contractual cash flows that are SPP| are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual terms that introduce
exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as
exposure to changes in Equity prices or Commadity prices, dao not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPFIL An
originated or an acquired Financial Asset can be a basic lending arrangement irrespective of whether it is a loan in its
legal form.

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a Financial
Asset. The Company determines the business models at a level that reflects how Financial Assets are managed at
individual basis and collectively to achieve a particular business objective.

When a debt instrument measured at F\VTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gainfloss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from the Equity to Profit and Loss. In contrast. for an Equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCL
the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCl is not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss
but transferred within the Equity.

Debt instruments that are subseguently measured at amortised cost or at FWVTOCI are subject ta impairment.

Financial Asset at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss [FWTPL)

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FWTOC! criteria are measured at FVTPL. In addition,
Debt Instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FYTOC! criteria but are designated as at FWVTFL are
measured at FWVTPL.

& financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or Debt Instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement ar
recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset. Dividend on financial assets at FWTPL is recognised when the Company's right
to receive the dividends is established, and the economic benefits associated with the dividend probably flow to the entity,
the dividend does not represent a recovery of a part of the cost of the investment, and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

Re-classification

If the business model under which the Campany holds financial assets changes. the financial assets affected are
reclassified. The classification and measurement reguirements related to the new categary apply prospectively from the
first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model that results in reclassifying the Company’s

During the current financial year and previous accounting period. there was na change in the business model under
which the Company holds financial assets, and therefore no reclassifications were made. Changes in contractual cash
flows are considered under the accounting policy on Modification and derecognition of financial assets described below.
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Impairement

Overnview of Expected Credit L oss (ECL) Principle

The GDr‘np.ar‘w records allowance for Expected Credit Losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not held at FWTPL,
tcggther with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as 'Financial Instruments'.
Equity Instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 10% - 'Financial Instruments’.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. Credit loss is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the ariginal Effective Interest Rate [or credit-adjusted
Effective Interest Rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired Financial Assets). The Company estimates cash flows
by considering all contractual terms of the Financial Instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) through the expected life of that Financial Instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrumeant at an amount equal to the lifetime expectad credit
lnsses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance
for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are
a portion of the lifetime expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that result if a default ocours
within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are nat cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months,

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a Financial Instrument if the credit risk on that Financial Instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition. For all other Financial Instruments, ECLs are measured at an amant
equal to the 12-manth ECL.

The Company measures ECL for stage 3 assets (as defined below) an an individual basis. The measurement of the loss
allowance is based on the present value of the asset's expected cash flows using the asset's original EIR.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification losses ar gains that are
accounted for as an adjustrment of the Financial Asset's gross carrying value.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period. of u_uhether_ a
Financial Instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the chanage in the risk
of default occurring over the remaining life of the Financial Instrument

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1. Stage 2 and Stage 3, as descriped below:
Stage 1 - Performing assets (high quality assets) with 0 to 30 days past due (DPD). Stage 1 loans also include facilities
where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2

Stage 2 - Under-Performing Assets (assets far which there is significant increase in credit risk) having_ﬂ_ﬁl ta 90 DPD.
Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.
Stage 3 - Non-Performing Assets (credit impaired assets) with averdue maore than 90 DFD.

Definition of Default o
The definition of default is used in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance

is based on 12-month ar lifetime ECL.

The Corporation considers the following as constituting an event of default;

the borrower is past due more than 80 days on any material credit obligation to the Corporation; or

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Corporation in full.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or other Financial Asset that result from transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 18 - 'Revenue Recognition’ and lnans under short term financing, the Company always
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Further. for the purpose of measuring lifetime ECL
allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109 - 'Financial
Instruments',

This ECL is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account histarical credit loss experience and adjusted
for forward-loaking information.

The impairment requiremeants far the recognition and measurement of a Ioss allowance are equally applied to Debt
Instruments at FWTOC! except that the loss allowance is recagnised in Other Comprehensive Income and is not reduced
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The Financial Assets for which the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding

amaunt, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the Financial Asset is reduced. This is considerad a {partial)
derecognition of the Financial Asset.

Derecognition
A Financial Asset is derecognised anly when :
The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the Financial Assets; or

Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the Financial Assets, but assumes a contractual cbligation to
pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the Financial Assets. In such cases. the Financial Assets is derecegnised, Where the entity has

not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset. the Financial Asset is nct
deracognised.

On derecognition of a Financial Asset under assignment transaction, the difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration received shall be recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Caollateral Valuation and Fepossassian

To mitigate the credit risk on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral. where possible as per the powers
conferred on the Housing Finance Companies under the Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and
Enforcement of Securities Interest Act, 2002 ("SARFAESI").

The Company provides fully secured, partially secured and unsecured loans to individuals. In its ordinary course of
business. the Corporation does nat physically repossess properties or other assets in its retail portfolio, but engages with
the external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle outstanding debt

Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligars. As a result of this practice, the residential properties under
legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet and rot treated as non—current assets held for sale.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written-off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial
asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it}. In such cases, the Company determines that the borrower does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off, A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off
Recoveries resulting from the Company's enforcement activities result in impairment gains and are credited ta statement
of profit and loss.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Claszification _ . o _
Debt and Equity Instruments issued by a Campany entity are classified as either Financial Llat}|||t|e_s ar as Equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a Financial Liability and an Equity
Instrument.

Financial Liability _
A financial liability is a contractual obligation ta deliver cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are patentially unfavourable to the Company or a cnntract_that
will or may be settled in the Company's equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Cpmpany is or
may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity that will or
may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or another financial asset) for a fixed number of the

Company's equity instruments,
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methad ar at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the
continuing invalvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and CDml‘l‘!il[‘ﬁE!‘l’[E
issued by the Company to provide a loan at pelow-market interest rate are measured under the specific accounting
policies set out belaw.




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Financial liabilities are classified as at FWVTPL when the financial liahility is either contingent consideration recognised by
the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies ar is held for trading or it is
designated as at FWVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term: or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified Financial Instruments that the Company manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of shart-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial Liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FWTPL are measured at amaortized cost.

Financial Liability subsequently measured at Amortised Cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FWTPL are measured at amortized cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amaounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of
the costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a Financial Liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the Financial Liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount an initial
recognition

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and anly when, the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. An exchange betweenfwith a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial
difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the ariginal financial liability and the recagnition af a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liahility derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

0) Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash eguivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term investments with an
griginal maturity of three months or less, which are subject ta an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shart term investments, as
defined above

P} Earning Per Share
i. Basic Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (before Other Comprehensive Incame) for the
year attributable to Equity Shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of Equity
Shares outstanding during the year.

ii. Diluted Earnings Per Share
For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit ar loss (before Other Comprehensive Income) far the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive patential equity shares.

Q) Assets held for sale
In the ordinary course of business, the Company does not nhysically repossess properties or other assets in _its retail
portfalio but generally engages external or internal agents to recover funds generally at auctions to settle outstanding debt.
Any surplus funds are returned to the customersfobligars, As a result of this practice. the residential properties under legal
repossession are not recorded on the balance sheet and are freated as assets held for sale at (i) fair value less cost to sell
or {ii) principal outstanding, whichever is less, at the repossession date.




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

R} Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

A)

B}

c)

Investments in Subsidiaries are measured at cost less impairment loss (if any) as per Ind AS 27 — Separate Financial
Statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINITIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments.
estimates and assumptions that affect the reparted amounts of revenues, expenses. assets and liabilities and the
acCompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting year. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimates are revised. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current
events and actions. uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future years.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
paolicies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements s included in the
following notes:

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to
achieve its business objective. The Company determines its business model at a level that reflects how financial assets as a
whole and not an individual instrument performs; therefore the business model is developed basis a higher level of
assessment at portfolio level rather than on granular instrument-level information and is based on observable factors such

. How the perfarmance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and

reported ta the entity’s key management personnel

ii. The risks that affect the parformance of the business model and. in particular, the way those risks are managed.
ili. The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also essential aspects of the Company’s assessment.
. How managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets

managed or on the contractual cash flows collectad).

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recegnised financial assets are part of an
existing business model or whether they reflect a new business model. The Company reassesses it's business model at
each reporting period to determine whether the business model has changed since the preceding period,

Based on thiz assessment and future business plans of the Company. the management has measured its financial assets at
amortised cost as the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows, and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flaws that are solely payments of principal and interest.

Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assurmptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future: these include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rate. Due to the
complexities invalved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at the end of each reporting date.

Share-based payments
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model,
which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option. volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them.
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VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) methood

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans and recognises the effect of potentially different interast
rates charged at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty
interest and charges). This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to the Company's base rate and other fee incomelexpense that are
integral parts of the instrument.

Fair value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liakbilities recorded in the balance shaet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the DCF madel. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible. a degree of judgement is
required in establishing far values, Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Impairment losses on financial assets (ECL)

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and
credit assessment and including forward-looking information. In some instances, the assessment based on experignce is
required for future estimation of cash flaws which requires significant judgment.

Inputs used and the process followed by the Campany in determining the increase in credit risk has been de_tailed in t_he
notes to accounts on Impairment. Estimation is also involved in the selection of forward-looking macroeconomic Scenarics
and their probability weightings, to derive the econamic inputs into the ECL models.

Excess Interest Spread on Direct Assignment

The assessment of derecognition criteria being met involves significant judgements. Furthermore, the measu_rement of the
related EIS receivable income, servicing asset and liability requires significant estimates ta be made for the discount rate,
expected portfolio life, prepayment and foreclosures.

Income Tax

The Company's tax jurisdiction is in India. Significant judgments are involved in determining the prowvision for income (ax
including the amount expected ta be paidirecovered for uncertain tax positions.

TRANSITION TO IND AS

Overall Principle

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended !‘u_ﬂarch
31, 2020. the comparative information presented in these financial staternents for the year ended leir-::h 31, 2q19, and in th_e
preparation of an opening Ind AS transition balance sheet as at Septem_ber 28, 2018 (the Campany's -::Iatelof |n-::n:_ur|:+1|f.~r.51tl|::r_"|_.ﬁiI
In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted 1_:he amcunts_repurted prev_lnusl},r in financia
statements prepared under the accounting standards netified under Companies (Accounting Star?dards; Rules, EDDB_ (as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian F.T._,ﬁ.AP.j. An _axplanatmn of how the transition
from previous Indian GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position. financial performance and cash flows is
set out in the following tables and note 37,




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

B) Exemptions and exceptions availed

We have set out below the applicable Ind AS 101 - First-time Adeption of Indian Accounting Standards’ optional and
mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

i. Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, Flant and
Equipment as recognised in the Financial Statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-
commissioning liakilities. This exemption has also been used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 - 'Intangible
Assets’

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their
previous GAAP carrying value.

ii. Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind &3 shall be consistent with estimates
made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in Accaunting
Paolicies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. Ind AS estimates as at September 23
2018 {date of incorporation) are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in confarmity with previous
GAAP. The Company made estimates for following stems in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these
wera not required under previous GAAFR:

iii. Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind A5 109 - 'Financial Instruments’ retrospectively. However,
as permitted by Ind AS 101 - 'First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards', it has used reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that Financial
Instruments were initially recognized in arder to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date.

iv. Classification and measurement of financial assets

The Company has classified the Financial Assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 - 'Financial Instruments' on the basis of
facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

¥. Lease

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 - 'Leases’ and applied the standard to all lease contracts
existing on April 1, 2019, using the maodified retrospective method and has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained
earnings, on the date of initial application. Consequently, the Company recarded the lease liability, of 157,96 lakh (PY:
Mil} as at March 31, 2020, at the present value of the lease payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and
the Right-of-Use Asset at its carrying amount, of #154.80 Lakh (PY: Nil} as at March 21, 2020, as if the standard had
been applied since the commencement date of the lease. but discounted at the Company’s incremental borrawing rate at
the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019, have not been retrospectively
adjusted and therefore continues to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of cur Annual Repart far
the year ended March 31, 2019
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VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Cash and Cash Equivalents (€ in Lakh)
i ; s : uhm e March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
Cash in Hand 1.59 -
Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 65 .84 16.09
In Depaosit Accounts with original maturity 3 months or less - 210.00
67.43 226.09 .

Total

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods ranging from one day to three months, depending an the immediate cazh
requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective shart-term deposit rates.
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VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Loans®

(At amortised cost) {¥in Lakh)

3 - ........ As at e 2 As at
Particulars March 31,2020 |  March 31, 2019

Loans Against Properties 34947 -
Interest accrued an loans 4,12 -
Total - Gross (A) 353.58 -
Less: Impairment Loss (Expected Credit Loss) 1.75 -
\Less: Umamortized Processing fee 3.56 -
Total — Net {A) 348.28 -
Secured by Tangible Assets 353.58 -
Secured by Intangible Aszets & -
Total — Gross (B) 353.58 -
Less: Impairment Loss (Expected Credit Lass) 1.75

Less: Umamortized Processing fee 3.56 =
Total — Net (B) 348.28 G
Loans in India 353.58 =
Total — Gross {C1) 353.58 -
Less: Impairment Loss (Expected Credit Loss) 1.75 -
Less: Umamortized Processing fee 3.56 -
Total - Net (C1) 348.28 -
Loans outside India 5 =
Total - Gross (C2) - -
Less: Impairment Loss (Expected Credit Lass) - 3
ILess: Umamortized Processing fee - 5
Total — Net (C2) - -
Total {C1) and (C2) 348.28 -

*Refer Nole 38

Loans and receivables are Mon-Derivative Financial Assets which generate a fixed or variable Interest Income for the
Company. The carrying value may be affected by changes in the credit risk of the counterparties.

Collateral and Other Credit Enhancements

Loans granted by the Company are secured by any or all of the following as applicable, based on thair categarisation:

a) Equitable / Registered Mortgage of Property.

b} Undertaking to create a security.
c) The personal guarantees of barrowers.
d) Assignment of insurance policies,

The Company monitors the value of callateral and will request additional collateral in accordance with the loan agreement.

Includes loans under on-going chegque handover post completion of disbursement process but under security creation.

There were no loans given against the collateral of gold jewellery & hence the percentage of such loan to the total

outstanding assets is Nil {(as at March 31, 2019 is Nil),
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VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Other Financial Assets {¥in Lakh)
e rerie March 31,2020 |  March 31, 2018
Security Deposits 8.37 -
Interest Accrued but not due on Bank Deposits - 488
Total 8.37 4.83
Current Tax Assets / Liability (Net) (¥ in Lakh}
: : s As at srs A At
: E g March 31, 2020 Ci March 31, 2013
TDS Receivables 0.75 054
Total 0.75 0.54
(¥Fin Lakh)
i As at sk ARk
o v Padio s March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
Difference in WDV of Fixed Assets as per Books & Income Tax {4.71) 0.87
Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.18 i0.82)
Unrealised Profit on change in Fair Value of Mutual Funds 1.1 -
Effective Interest Rate on Fee Incame & Expenses 0.81 -
Total 0.15

*Refer Note 34
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VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

14 Other Non-financial Assets {#in Lakh}
e R o March 31, 2020 [ March 31, 2019
Prepaid Expenses -
Input GST 1.85
Total 16.05 1.85

15 Trade Payables (¥ inr Lakh}
e e ; SRaE Partic i : e sk R el
e ; e Ufﬂl'ﬂ o March 31.,-;@&:-: b March 31,2019
Payable to Micro and Small Enterprises 3 :
Payable to Creditors other than Micre and Small Enterprises 638 -
Total 6.38 -

The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micre. Small and Meadium Enterprises Develeprment Act, 2006, has been
determined to the extent of infermation available and compiled by the Company. This has been relied upan by the auditors.

151 (¥ in Lakh)
T B R Shman A e
March 31, 2020 i March 31, 2019
at the end of each accounting year; ) i
b} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Smal
and Medium Enterprizes Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyand the appointed day during each accounting year " z

¢} the amount of interest due and payable for the period of dalay in making payment
fwhich has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the inferest specified under the Micro. Small and Medium Entarprizes Development Act,
2008

dj the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of sach accounting
year; and

e} the amount of further interest remaining due and payable sven in the succseding
years, until such dafe whean the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
anterprise, for the purpose of dizallowance of 8 deductible expenditure undsr section 23 - -
of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2008,

Total - s




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

(¥ in Lakh)

16 Other Financial Liabilities

17

 Particulars,

As at ;
March 31, 2020

T Asat

- March 31, 2018

Book Overdraft
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

0.88

Employee Benefits Payable -
Lease Rental Liability* 157,96 &
Other Financial Liabilities 4478 4.47
jTotal 203.63 447
*The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2020 on an
undiscounted basis:
(& in Lakh)
e : As at S M H'I'. 2R 5
e  March 31,2020 | 31,2018
Less than 1 year 133.86 -
11to 3 years 20.01 -
More than 3 years 405 -
Total 157.96 -
Provisions (¥ in Lakh)
T . Asat Lo Asat
March 31, 2020 _March 31, 2019
- Gratuity* 0.94 7
Total 0.94 -
*Refer Note 36
: ; A’“-ﬂt-..'..- R ¢ :
~March 31,2020 | Marec
0.09 -
Statutory dues 272 0.0
Total 2.81 0.01
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19  Equity Share Capital

AUTHORISED
10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of #10 each 10,000.00 250.00
(FY 2019: 25 00,000 Equity Shares of #10 each)
10,000.00 250.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
5,25.00,000 Equity Shares of 10 each fully paid up 5,250.00 250.00
(FY 2019: 25,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥10 each)
Total 5,250.00 250.00
Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

Padicilin As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019

B Number Zin Lakh Number #in Lakh
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 25,00,000 250.00 - -
Shares issued during the year pursuant to right issue 5,00,00,000 5.000.00 25.00,000 250.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 5,25.00,000 5,250.00 25,00,000 250.00

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions
The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of #10 per share. Each shareholder of equity shares is eligible to one vote per share. The
dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim
dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company. the holders of Equity Shares will be eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of

all preferential amounts, in proportion of their shareholding.

List of shares held by Holding Company

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Number v

Number

..5:

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

5.25 00,000 100%

25 00,000

100%

List of shareholders Iﬂ_n_m:m more than 5% shares

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Number : %

Number

“astu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

5,25,00,000 100%
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Other Equity (®in Lakh)
e - T NigRomecannopy . gy o7 EER
Gl Lo Paiedlem i March 31,2020 |  March 31, 2019

Share Application Money Pending Allotment - -
Retained Earnings {195.10) 0.14
General Reserve = i
Securities Premium z i
Statutory / Special Reserve 2 2
Share Cption Outstanding Account - B
Total {195.10) 0.14

Note: For additions and deductions under each of the above heads, refer Statement of Changes in Equity

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to General Reserve, Statutary
Reserve, Dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

General Reserve
The general reserve created from time to time by transferring profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposa.

Securities Premium
Securities premium account is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised aonly for limited
purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accardance with the pravisions of the Campanies Act. 2013,

Statutory Reserve

Statutory Reserve is the reserve created by transferring a sum not less than twenty percent of the Company’s net profit
after tax every year in terms of Section 45-|C of the Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934. For this purpose any Special
Reserve created by Company under section 36(1){viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is considered to be an eligible transfer,
Further, Company doesn't anticipate any withdrawal from Statutory Reserve in foreseeable future.

Share Option OQutstanding Account
This Reserve relates to Stock Options granted by the Campany to employees under various ESOF Schemes. This
Fesarve is transferred to Securities Pramium Account on exercise of vested options.
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Interest incnme
(At amortised cost)

{¥in Lakh)
5 B For the year ended For the year ended
o Fathedtars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest Income on Loans 2011 -
Other Interest Income* 0.78 -
Total 20.87 -

*Other Interest Income includes notional interest on Security Deposif of 3. 76 Lakhs,

Fees and Commission Income (¥ in Lakh)
: B For the year ended |  Forthe year ended
 March: 31, 2018
3.52 -
Total 3.52 -
MNet Gain on Fair Value changes (¥ in Lakh)
i ; : ' For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2020 . March 31, 2019
On Trading Portfolio
Mutual Fund 136,08 3
Total (A} 136.09 -
Fair Value Change
Realised 131.22 -
Unrealised 4,86 -
Total (B} 136.08 n
(% in Lakh)
R ~ Fortheyearended | For the year ended
- Particulars _ March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Other Charges (CERSAI cancellation, cheque bouncing charges etc.) 0.18 .
Total 0.18 -
Other Income (¥Fin Lakh)
R - Forthe year ended | = For the year ended
L Paicuise .. March 31,2020 |  March 31, 2019
Interest Income on Fixed Deposit 2.08 542
Total 2.08 542
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Finance Costs
(At amortised cost) (¥ in Lakh)
S i For the year ended | For the year ended
L . i March 31,2020 |  March 31, 2019
Interest expense on lease liabilities 11.27 -
Other interest expense 0.08 0.01
Total 11.33 0.01
Impairment on Financial Instruments
{At amortised cost) (¥ in Lakh)
2 For the year ended |  For the year ended
e e L - March 31, 2020 | March 31; 2012
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 1.75 -
Total 1.75 -
Employee Benefits Expense (Fin Lakh)
R S S For the year ended |  For the year ended
i jihaiouime o March 31,2020 |  March 31, 2019
Salaries, Bonus and other allowances 152.37 -
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds® 3.64 o
Gratuity* 0.94 -
Staff Welfare Expenses 4.99
Total 161.95 -
*Rafer Note 36
Other Expenses {Fin Lakh)
A For the year ended |  For the year ended
S N o e “gl"ﬂh 31' mu , e Hgn;h 31’ zu1g
Rent, Taxes and Energy Costs 2.74 -
Repairs and Maintenance 12.84
Communication Costs 2.69 5
Printing and Stationery & 60 -
Advertisement and Publicity 0.26 -
Auditor's Fees and Expenses (refer details below) 0.25 0.42
Legal and Professional Charges 31.85 0.08
Insurance 0.31
Traveliing Expenses 228 :
ROC Fees and Stamp Duty g92.70 -
Other Expenditure 2.63 3.95
Total 155.04 4.45
Auditor's Fees and Expenses {Fin Lakh)
S, ] AR : For the year ended | = For the year ended
B Pﬁrﬂnum March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
a) For Audit 0.25 0.16
k) For Taxation matters - -
¢} For Certification and Other Services - 0.268
Total

0.42
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Taxes on Income

(% in Lakh)

Reconciliation of Tax Expenses

March 31, 2020

E.B: 1, Mn._ﬁw

Current Tax

Deferred Tax (2.75) _u:m.
Total Income Tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss [2.75) Q.15
Income Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - -
Income Tax for the year reconciled to the accounting profit

Profit before tax (198.00) 0.29
Income tax rate 22.88% 19.24%
Income tax expense 5 0.06
Tax Effect of:

Others (including tax adjustment for earlier years) - (0.06)

Income tax expense recognised in Profit and Loss

The following table shows Deferred Tax recorded in the Balance Sheet and changes recorded in the Income Tax

(¥ in Lakh)

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Difference in WDV of Fixed Assets as per Books & Income Tax
Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Unrealised Profit on change in Fair Value of Mutual Funds
Effective Interest Rate on Fee Income & Expenses

Total 0.15 {2.75) ) {2.60)
For the year ended March 31, 2019 (¥ in Lakh)
A : : xmno.u:_umn_ in : :

R As at As at !
Particulacs March 31,2018 | 133 or Loss Other J”:ﬂﬂhﬁ:m_:m March 31, 2019

Difference in WOV of Fixed }mmm*m as per Books & _3n93m Tax - n_.m._.. - nar

Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - {0.82) - {0.82)

Unrealised Profit on change in Fair Value of Mutual Funds = : -

Effective Interest Rate on Fee Income & Expenses -

Total - 0.15 - 0.15
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31 Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments (€ in Lakh)
R T For the year ended | For the year ended
Peteulan March 31, 2020 . March 31, 2019
Capital Commitments
Undisbursed commitments 14.00 -
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital - -
account and not provided for
32 Earnings per Equity Share (¥ in Lakh)
: e For the year ended ‘For the year ended
. ~ Particulars March 31,2020 |  March 31, 2018
Frofit attributable to Equity Shareholders (¥ in Lakh) {195.24) 014
Weighted Average Mumber of Equity Shares - Basic 3,00.34,247 25,00,000
Dilutive effect of Stock Option (#) - -
_'Ié"."iighted Average Number of Equity Shares - Diluted 3,00.34,247 25.00,000
asic earnings per share (¥) (0.65) 0.01
Diluted earnings per share (¥) {0.65) 0.01
Mominal value per share (%) 10.00 10.00

32 Segement Reporting

The Company operates in a single reporable operating segment of providing loans. Accordingly there are no separats
reportable segments, as per the Accounting Standard on 'Operating Segments' (Ind AS 108) prescribed under section 133

of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has its operation within India and all revenues are generated within India.

34 Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013

(read with schedule VIl thereof)
The Company was not required to spend any amount towards CSE.
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35 Retirement Benefit Plan

Dafined Contribution Plan

The Company ogersles Defined Cantribution Plan (Providen Fund) for al quaifying employees of the Company, The empioyess of the Company are mameers of 8 Retireman
Contributan Scheme operated by the government. The Company is required 1o contribule @ specified percentage of payroll cost to the Retirement Sonibution Scherme 12 fund

1he benefits. The only abligation of the Campany wilh respec-l 1 thee @ is to make the specified contributicns

e _ Particulars

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2018

Employers C.l:lntrll:luton to Fr\c\-.m:ant Fund

8316000

Defined Benefit Obligation Plan
The limbifty under the Bayment of Gratuily S, 19

associEied ang
Investment / Interest Rate Risk:

72 ane delarminad on ihe basis of acuanal valuabon made at the end of each inanca! year using the Projesed Lint Oreas
Method The plan is of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is spensesed oy the Campany and bence it uncerwsites all the risks peraining ic the plan. Tre sctuarial rsks

The Gompany is exposed 10 Investment ¢ I rlessat Rate sk if 1he retum an the incesied Tund Bils selow he discount rate wsed to arive o present value of the benedil

Longevity Risks:

The Company ia nol exposed lo risk of the emplayess iving lange: as the benefil under the scheme ceases on the emploves saparating from the employar for any reason

iii. Salary Risks:

Thue graduity benafis under the plan are related 1o Ihe employee’s last drawn salary Sonsegoeenty, any unuseal riss in fuure salary of the employes raises the cuanturm of
henefit payable by the company, which results in @ higher liabiliy Far the company and is therefore a olan risk for the company

The folkowing tahk: summarises the comoonant of netl benefit expense recognised in tne 51

respective plans basad on Acturial Repon and rebed ugan By audilons

a) Agsumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuation

aternent of Frafil and Loss and amounts recogrsed in he Baance Snaal tor the

“Warch 31, 2020

March 31, 2018

Financial Assumptions
Ciscount rate
Salary escalsticn rate

2.35%
12 O0%

0 00%:
0 00%:

Demoagraphic Assumptions
Retirerment age
Moralily rale fae

GH years

LALLM (2012-141*

Snctan Assinag Uvas Monahne (201 2-T4) Uit

b} Amuu nt mc.ugnlsad In the Balance Sheeat

{¥in Lakh}

. Pariculars

March 31, 2020

~ March 31, 2018

F're-sen' \-alue u.‘ urrunded I::efned Benafit Cipigation
Amount nal recognised due 1o asssl limit

Het Dafined Bensefit Liability/(Assets) recognised in Balance Sheet

Met Defined Beaslil Liakdity!| Assels) bifurcaled as follows
Current
Mon-Current

{Fin Lakh)

5] Ennansas rm:u-gmsa-d in the Statement of Profit and Loss
o "—'—""F o E “

March 31, 2019

-Curran'. SEMVIcE cn51

| Past sandice cosl

| Aaministration expenses

| Interast on net Defined Benalil Lianilily/{Asse)

| {Gamns)/Losses an curtailmeants and seltliements'

Total expenses to be recognized in the Statement ufPru_ﬁt and Loss

(Fin Lakh)

dj Amount recorded in Dmer Enmpl\ehenall.le Income

_March 31, 2019

Cipening armaunt recrzgmsed in D01 outside of $1atem-enl ol Profil and Loss
Remeasuremenls during the penod dus to

Change in fnancal assumplons

Change in demographic assumptions

Experience adjusimanis

Artual return on Flan Assets kess Interest in #an Assels

Adjustment 1o recognise 1he elect of saset celling

C|Wil'l! amount recognised in OCI outsida of Statement of Profit and Loss

[+

{® in Lakh)

Reconciliation of nat liability | (assets)

Particulars

March 31, 2020 _

March 31, 2018

Cpening net Defined Benefil Liakdily / {Assets)
Expenses charged lo Statement of Broft and Loss
Amount recognised in DC1 outside of Statemeant of Profil and Loas
Employer Cooniributaon

|Liakiliies sssumed on scqusiicn / (seltied an dvestiure|

0.94

clnaing n!! Dufined Bengfit Liability | {Assets]
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I'I-lov-mnm of Deﬁnad Benefit Ghtlgntk:n

{®in Lakh)

Particulars

Gna ing m&sefﬂ vabue o‘f Defnud Benefit Cbigation
Current service cost
Pasl service cost
Imeresl an Defined Benefit Sbhgaticn
Remeasurements Losses![Gains) due to:
Chrange in financial assumptions
Changa in demographe assumptions
Expernence adjusiments
Benefils B
Liabilfies assurmed on scqusition J (sellied on divestibure)

March 31, 2018

Cimlng present value of Defined Benafit Obligation

Mau-ement I:F'Fllr valua ufPiun .ﬁ.ﬁsatﬁ

{#in Lakh)

Margh 31, 2019

Opening Fair valug clf F"IEln -ﬁ.ssma
Employar contributions

|Interest on San Assels
AMINIEraion exenies

| Remeasurerment dus 1o aclual return on Plan Assets e tereat oo Plan Asssts
Benefits paid

Assels aoguined | (setlled)”

Closing fair alue of Plan Assets

“on account of Business combinaban o inter-growp rensier

(Fin Lakh}

s

I'iluvnmam of asEat nalllng

Opening valua l:lf HEE:BT DBII-'H:I
IMerest on opening Value of aeset cailing
Femeasurement due to change in Surplusidenicill

“March 31, 2015

Clglng valug of asset ceiling

Surplua ! [Deﬂnlt}

(¥ in Lakh}

L 2019-20

Daﬁnec Ele".e'nt Obllgmlnn
Flan Asaet

Sumiug f [Dedict)

Experiznce adjiusimani on Plan Lisbilties
Exprrience adjustmani on Flan Asset
Expecled controwtion next near

0.94

0.594)

2018 -19

Sensitivity analysis

Fignificant actuana assumptions for the determination of the Defined Benafil Okligation s Discount Rate and Expacted Salary Increase. The sensibvity analyss below have
been datermined based on reasonsble posaible changes of the assumptions ocournng at the end of the reporbng penod, while holding all other assumplions coastant. The

rasults of sensitvity analysis are &3 Tollows

(® i Lakh)

Dafine benefit oblinafion on increasa in 50 bps .80 . -
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBD -4 90% 4 97 %% 0.00% D00
Cusfined benefit oblination on decrease in 50 bos 0.99 0 a0 - G
Imp&ct of decrease in 50 bps on DBQ -5.27% 4 GE 0.00% 0.00%

The sensiivity aralysis presented abowve may nol be representative of the actual change in the defined bensfit cliigation as it is unlikely that the crange in assumptions would

coour in aclation of ane ancihes as some of the assumpbons may be corelaled

There i ra changs in the method of valuation for the pror pedods in preparing 172 sensiivity analysis. For change in agsumplions fsler to nole (3] above.

Furtnermara, in gresanting the above senstivly analysis, the Presert Walua of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been calculated wsing the Projected Lind Crecs methes at the

ana of the reportng penod, which is the same as that apoied in csiculabng the Cefined Benefit Zolgation mcognised in the Balance Shess

Projected benefits payabile: (Fin Lakh)
R ‘March 31,2020 [ Warch 31, 2019

Expected benefits for Year | 0.00 -

Expected benefits for Year 2 .00

|Expectad benefis for Year 3 0.00

| Expected benefts for Year 4 .00 &

Expected penefis for Year & 0.23 -

IExpecI.ed anefds for Year G 0.20 -

|Expected benafits for Year 7 015

Expected Denefts for Year 8 013 -

Expected banefits for Year 9 011 -

Ewpected banefits for year 10 and above 1.18 B

Thia weighted average dursticon o the payment of these cash flows s 1025 vaars (FY 2018-14 : il
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36 Related Party Disclosures

36.1 List of related parties:

a) Holding Company
Vastu Housing Finance Corparation Limited

b} Key Managerial Personnels (KMPs)
Sandeep Mencn - Whole Time Director
Wikki Soni - Chief Financial Officer
Pallavi Bhambere - Company Secretary

36.2 Disclosure of Related Party (¥ in Lakh)
e S S March 31, 2020 ch 31, 2019
1. Investment in Equity Shares by:
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited 5.000.00 250.00
2. Managerial remunerations®
(included in employee benefit expenses) _
Sandeep Menon - Whole Time Director il Mil
Vikki Soni - Chief Financial Officer il il
Pallavi Bhambere - Company Secretary Mil il
3. Reimbursement of expenses
Wastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited il 402

“The remuneration fo the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuily benefits, as they are

determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

36.3 Amount due to [ from Related Parties:

~ Asat
Net Receivable / (Payable)
Wastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited Mil 402
36.4 Amount paid to Directors:
..... - T For the year gndm:_l-' 1 For \Ehﬁ year ended
Paditulam. March 31,2020 | | March 31, 2019
Nil il

MNote!

Related party relationship is as identified by the company and relied upon by the avditors,
The transactions with Related Parties are disclosed only fill the relationship exists.
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3T Firsttime Ind AS adoption

71 Effect of ind AS adoption on the Balance Shest (®irm Lakh)
“As at March 31, 2020 0 As arMarch 31, 2019
PRSRETIETR O 1. B8 GRS N R R+ £
 Flovious | Transtion | maas | Freveus L ind s
| [ASSETS
1 |Financial Assets
a | Cashand Cash Equivalenis 13 57.43 B7 43 22808 226.09
o Bank Balances (oiher than Cash and Cash Eguivalents) =} 3 -
' Loans T 345 47 (1.191 348.24
d InweEimants a 4 63531 4 Bf 4.540 18 | - -
e Cther Financial Asseds 9 12.30 {3,831 837 | 4.98 4.88
5,064.51 (0.26) 5.064.26 230.97 - 230,87
2 |Non-Financial Assets -
E] Current Tax Assels (Met) 14 a.7s | - avrs .54 054
b Caferred Tax Assels [Med) 11 2 B0 2 60 B
b | Propery, Fianl and Equipment 12 ERE] 3 815 -
o | Oter inlangible Assets 13 21 96 - 21.98 2140 | 2140
d Right af Lise Assed 14 - 154.80 154,80 '
] Cilher Man-financial Assets 15 2017 14.121 16.05 185 _1.B3
51.03 153.38 204.41 23.80 23.50
TOTAL 5.115.54 163.12 5,.26E.88 2E4.77 | 254.77
Il [LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
| |LIABILITIES
1 |Financial Liabilities
a Trade Payables 16
Total uistanding dues 1o Micra and Srral Enterprises = E "
Total Culstanding dues fo Creditens affer than Micra ard Smal 536 .35 - -
| Enlerprises
b Chher Financial Liabiities 17 1.02 20261 203.83 = 447 447
. 7.40 202.61 210.01 447 4.47
2 |Non-Financial Liabilities
a | Delered Tax Lisbillies (Met) 11 0 E& 10,85, - 015 016
o | Provisions 16 258 11.75) 054 . - 2
c Other Mon-financial Liabiities 19 A7 45 145.001 2.81 4 47 2 47) o
51.01 14761} 376 4.63 (4.47] 0.18
EQUITY 3 B
a Equity Share Capial 20 5,250.00 - £,250.00 260 00 250 00
[+ Oiher Equty 21 {1B2. BT [2.23) R 014 oo 014
5.057.13 [2.23) 5,054.80 250.14 0.00 250.14
TOTAL | B.11664 162.97 5 266,66 254.77 _264.77 |
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37.2 Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Profit & Loss (Fin Lakh)
" For the year ended March 31, 2020 | mp:mmﬁ’ d March 31, 2"}'1'&__1
Previous | Efectef | . _ | Previous | Effectof '
i GAAP | Transition | L GAAP | Tr
1 [INCO |
Rewvenue from Operabons
a Interast Income | 22 19 04 163 20 BY
b | Fessand Commissian Inceme 23 1001 [6.48) 352
S Met Gain on Fair Value changes 24 131.22 4 85 136.00
d Ciher Operating Incorme 25 018 -1 DB T
Total Revenue from Operations 160.46 0.21 160,67
d |Cther Income | =8 208 - 208 5.42 - 542
Total Income 162.54 0.21 162.74 542 - 642
Il |EXPENSES
a |Finance Coats 27 0.08 11.27 11.33 0.om - om
b [Imgairment on Finandal Instruments 24 1.75 - 1.75 - - =
c |Ermployee Benefis Expense 29 156 95 495 164.95 = =
d |Depreciation. Amorisaton & | moairement o T4 #3154 A0.88 n&aT - oEv
2 |Qther Expenses 30 186 S (33,90 155 04 4 45 - Al d 45
Total Expenses 364 84 5.890 360.74 B13 - 5.13
Il |PROFIT BEFORE TaX (192,31} 15.891 (198.00} D29 - 028
IV |TAX EXPENSES
Current Tax = - , - - -
Deterred Tax 0.71 (3.46] (275} 0.5 2 nis
Tatal Tax Expensa M 0.71 {3.46] 12.75] 0.15 - D.15
V |PROFIT AFTER TAX | (193.01} 12.23 [195.24] 014 . 014
VI (OTHER COMPREHEMNSIVE INCOME
It thad will nod be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Ariuanal loss on Post Retirament Benafil Flans - - | L |
Income 1ax on above - - 1 - - =
Total Other Comprehensive Income . . . - =
Vil |TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (193.01} 12.23] [195.24} 014 - D.14
VIl|EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE Iz
(Mominal Value of #10 each)
Basiz (7] (0.64) (0.011 [0.65) .01 10,00 0o.01
Celuted [#) (0.E4) (001 | [0.65) 0.1 0,200 0.1

W
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37.3 Reconciliation of Total Equity as at March 31, 2020 and April 01, 2019 and Profit or Loss for the year ended March

T4

31, 2020:

(¥ in Lakh)

Net Profit Equity Reconciliation
SRR Reconciliation SRR e e
ptewe | we 1 uw
i : 2020 " | March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Net Profit f Equity for the year as per previdus GAAP (193.01) 505713 250.14
IndAS Adjustments:
Prowvision for Expected Cradit Loss - -
Effective Interest Rate for Financial Assets and Liahilties at {3.56) (3.56) -
amortised cost
Motional Interest Income on Security Ceposits 0.78 0.75
Fair value of change in Financial Assels 4,86 4. 84 -
Rent Expenses on Lease Rental Liability 27.058 2705 -
Motional Finance Cost on Lease Rental Liability (11.27) (11.27)
Amortisation of Right of Use Asset (23.54) (23.54) -
Fair value of Employes Stock Option - g 2
Reclassification of actuarial gains and losses on employee - : 2
benefit plans to other comprehensive income
Deferred tax impact on the above 3.46 3.46 -
Total {2.23) (2.23) -
Met profit | Equity for the year as per Ind AS (195.24) 5,054 .90 25014
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 2 - -
Total Comprehensive income | Equity as per Ind AS (195.24) 5,054.90 250.14
Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2019:
(% in Lakh)
= | As per Previous As per ind AS
1 GAAP Balance sheet

e S AS S
Cash Flow fram [ (used in) Operating Activities (B40.22) (26 28) ; {613.93:}
Cash Flow from / (used in) Investing Activities (4.517.72) 4.74) 4.512.98)
Cash Flow fram / {used in} Financing Activities 5.000.00 31.74 4 .968.26
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents {157.94) 0.72 (158.66)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 226.08 - 226.09
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 68.16 0.72 67.43

The cash flow adjiustments are primarnly on account of Ind AS reclassification.

MNote;

For the periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company prepared its financial statemnents under
the accounting standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013, read together with the Gc:-m_pan_ies
(Aecounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended (Previcus GAAP). Accordingly, the Company has prepared its first
financial statements ta comply with Ind AS for the year ending March 31, 2020, together with comparative information as
at and for the year ended March 31, 2019, In preparing these financial statements, the Company prepared its opening
Balance Sheet as of April 1, 2018, i.e. the transition date to Ind AS for the Company. Previous GAAP financial statements
as on April 1, 2018, being transition date and for the previcus year ended March 31, 2019, have been restated as per Ind

AS.
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37.5 Exemption Availed

b)

c)

d)

e}

h}

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets :
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets re_cugniseci as of April 1, 2018 (the transition date), measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying
value as its deemed cost as of the transition date under Ind AS.

Classification and measurement of financial assets :

T.he Company has classified the financial assets under Ind AS 109 - ‘Financial Instruments’ based on facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind A5

Fair value of financials assets and liabilities :

As per Ind AS exemption, the Company has not fair valued the financial assets and liabilities retrospectively and has
measured the same prospectively.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the exception related to impairment of Financial Assels given in Ind A5 101, It has used
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determineg the credit risk at the
date that Financial Assets were initially recognized and compared that to the credit risk as at April 1, 2018,

Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has created provision for loans and advances based on the guidelines on prudential
norms issued by Reserve Bank of India. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on the
Expected Credit Loss model (ECL). However, as the Company have little historical information about its own credit loss
experience, the Expected Credit Loss has been calculated based on self-experience, peer group experience for
comparable financial instruments as allowed as per Ind AS 109,

Investments
Under Previous GAAP, Investments in Mutual Funds are valued at Lower of Cost or Net Assets Value. Under Ind AS the

same has been classified as FVTPL and gain/loss on change in Net Assets Value are recognised in profit and loss.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR)

Under previous GAAP. transaction costs iprocessing fee) charged to customers was recognised upfront while under Ind
&5, such costs are included in the intial recognition amount of financial asset and recognised as interest income using the
effective interest method. Similarly, Under Indian GAAF, transaction costs incurred in connection with loans and advances
are amortised upfront and charge to profit and loss for the year. Under Ind AS, transactions cost are included in the initial
recogrition amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost and charged to profit and loss using the effective
interest method.

Under previous GAAP, transaction costs incurred on borrowings was charged to Statement of Profit and Loss while under
Ind AS, such costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liabilities and recagnised as interest expense
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method.

Deferred Tax on Special Reserve
Under the Previous GAAP, as per RBI guidelines Deferred Tax Liability is required to be created on Special Reserve.
Under Ind AS, there is no requirement of creating Deferred Tax Liability on account of Special Reserve as such the same

The application of Ind AS 12 - 'Income Tax' approach has resulted in the various transitional adjustments being tem;_mrary
differences. Accordingly, the Company has accounted for such differences. These adjustments are recagnised in co-
relation 1o the underlying transaction either in Retained Earnings. Other Comprehensive Income or Profit & Loss

Defined Benefit Obligation

Both under previous GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit
plan on an actuarial basis. Under previous GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gain and losses. are charged to prafit
ar loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
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35 Financial Instruments

33,9 Capital Mansgement
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5.2 Fair Valua
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Hotes 1o Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Expemue 12 Ligueliy Riss
Tha falgwing are ke detais of Comnany's remaining conlraciua matanlizs o F nancial Lisbiilias 603 Siterca Assels at the eporng date The amourts i@ gross ane ardiscoarsac

Financial Assats

Cash ard Cash Sauivaleras E E7 43 -
Lo 34E 28 16 80 3244 4250 258,12
Investmants 4 64018 4840 18 - -
Other Fnancial &ssats __B37 G637 - e
Tatal 506426 A TIRTE | 12,45 42.50 25613
| Financial Liabilites
Trace Payabias .33 £.38 2 =
Crnar Financial Liskslives 203.63 175 43 2410 :
Total 20| 185,91 410 B -
As at March 31, 2019 (i Lanh)

prerc: S
Financial Assets
Casn and Cash Squivalerns 22605 22609 -
Loans E H o
Inveabment: | A & 3
Thher Enarcial 55605 FEE] 4 B8R o
Tatal Z30.87 23087 =
|
Financial Liabilites
Trace Payaoles - E - -
Crner Fnarcial Liabliss 447 . = s i 2
Total .47 | -1 = - - -

Trg gross inflows dsclosed in e above 18k represenl 1he corvachusl uigissaumee cash Acws relabing o Fnarcal Cagiiies bald 1o rsk managament purgosas nd whoh sre 100 uiualy dosed aul Be'nns
carrachual masanity

Marial Rigk |Inbarest Rate Frsk)
The Comnany 5 axpasedd 10oreradl rabe risk 8z it has asaets ard iabiiles based o Heoaling rmierest rates as weal

Expasare o Nlerest Rate Rk
The Company's eepasuras 0 mieresl s&tas on Fnarcisl Azset a1 Tinanca _atillies 3w detsisd i e ligud b riss nanagenent secticn of this nos.

(¥ i Lakin

Financial Assets
| Fixed-rale nsiumarss
Fioaling-raia instramsnis

_Total 34528
Finmneial Liabilities
Fiead-rale netumans a
F oaling-rate irsbtrursnts
Tatal - -

Far value sensnnaty analysis far flaaing-rate instrumants
This 2enstivity analysis beiow has tesn detemminec based on expasire 10 Fe rmeeest rabes for Tinanca Ineiarents alge and of 1ha rapoting paicds, At Iha sipaated charge saking alace al the Leginrirg

at e Sinancal Yaar ard baid constans threughoul thia rapamng padzd ncase of insiraments siat 1awe flaasng rakes
H inberest razes rad beer 100 Eass paints higier or lzwer ard all alhar vanabies were conslar, e Corpamy's Frafit Before Tax soakd Bava changad by 1ha faleesing

8 2 } B

it bps ox L
Fleating Rate - Loans 14y [ERTR - -
Floating Rata - Barmwings

Total T (3,48} = - =




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Wotes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

40 Disclosures required as per Reserve Bank of India Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-System|cally Impartant
Non-Depaosit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

LIABILITIES SIDE

11 Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusiva of i

nterest accrued thereon but not paid:

" As at March 31, 2020 _ L2018

Amount Amaunt —AmoLnt
SRR Dutstanding Overdue i Overdue
ta)  Debentures

-Secured
-Unsecured (other than falling within the scape of public deposit)
(bt Deferred Credit
{¢)  Term Loans
(dy  Inter-Corporate Loans and Borrowings
(&) Commercial Paper
fi Public Deposits
{g)  Oiher Loans

ASSETS SIDE

Y]

4)

(b} Unsecured

340 47

21 Braak-up of Loans and Advances including hills receivablas [other than those included in (4] bealow]
{8y Secured -

financang activities:

T
March 31, 2020

(i) Financial Leasa
{iiy Cperating Lease

(b) Stock on hire Including hire charges under sundry debtors:
{iy Assels on Hire
(i) Repossessed Assels

(e} Other Loans counting towards assets financing activities
(i1 Loans whera assels have been repossessed
(i} Loans ather than (2) abave

March 31, 2018

Braak-up of Investments

(a) Quoted
(i} Shares
Equity
- Preferance
{iy Debantures and Bonds
Liiiy Units of Mutual Funds
{iv] Governmeant Sacurities
{¥] Others
{b]  Unguaoted
iy Shares
- Equity
- Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iiiy Units of Mutual Funds
{iv) Government Secunties
(w) Othears

Long-Term Investments
{a) CQuoted
(I} Shares
- Equity
- Preference
(i} Debantures and Bonds
(i) Units of Mutual Funds
{iv} Government Sacurities
[v] Others

463531

{b} Unquoted
(i} Shares
- Foquify
- Preference
(i) Debentures and Bards
{iiiy Units of Mutual Funds
{iv) Gowvarnment Securities
(w) Others




VASTU FINSERVE INDi& PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

3} Borower group-wise classification of assets financed as in {3) and (4] above:

&}

7

(&l

i

Relaled Parties

Secured

!umuntl_!_ltn{ Provisions

Unsecured

(i} Subsidiaries

(1] Companies in the same group
(iii} Dther ralated parties

Other than related parties

d unguoted):

Total z
Investor group-wise classification of all investments (curent and long termy) in Shares and Securities (both quated an
| Fairvaluel |Book Value (Mot
R i HAY t_)._f Provisions) |
@ |[R
(i} Subsidianes -
(i) Companies in the same group
(iii} Other ralated parties
{b) | Cther than related paries -
Total -
Other Information:
(a} |Gross Mon-Perfarming Assets
{il Related Partias =
(i} Other than related parbes
(o) [Met Mon-Performing Assats
(il Related Farties 7
{iiy Other than related partes
(o) |Assels acquired in satistaction of debi 5

Total
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VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 34, 2020

Additional disclosures required as per Reserve Bank of India Master Direction

41.1 Capital

41.2

41.3 Asset Liability Management Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

(€ in Lakh)

Particulars

March 31, 2020 |

March 31, 2019

CRAR (%)
CRAR — Tier | Capital (%)
CRAR = Tier Il Capital (%)

109.01%
108.97%
0.03%

4036.66%
4035.66%,
0 Q0%

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- || Capital
Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instrumeants

Investments

{#in Lakh)

'h'alu.n of Iﬁveéﬁnénts

March 31, 2020 |

‘March 31, 2013

i. Gross Value of Investment
al In India
b Qutside India

ii. Prowvision for Depreciation
al In India
b Cutside India

iil. Met Value of Investment
a) In India
b Outside India

4,635.31

4, 63531 =

i. Opening Balance
i, Add: Provisions made dunng the year

iv. Closing Balance

Movement of provision held towards depreciation on Investment

iii. Less: Write-off / Write-back of excess provesions during the year

Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

1 maonth

Owver 1 - 2 months
Ower 2 - 3 months
Ower 3 - 6 months
Cwer § - 12 months
Ower 1 -3 years
Ower 3 - 5 years
Cwer 8- 7 years
Ower 7 - 10 years
Over 10 years

Ower 1 - 2 months - - 101 -
Ower 2 - 3 months - - 102 -
Cwer 3 - 6§ months - - 2
Cwer 6 - 12 months - - G670 -
Owver 1-3 years - - 3295 =
Owver 3 - 5 years - - 43 .56 -
Over 5 - 7 years - - 50.54 -
Ower 7 - 10 years - 28.75

Ower 10 years - - 110.78

Total - - 249,47 -

As at March 31, 2019 {¥in Lakh)

: e HHRRH L]mﬂ&l Assetls __

""""" Particulars " Borrowings from | Market Borrowings - R BERRRRE A ARl

i ..g'mﬁsim'm: CP NCD ICD Advances. R

Total




VASTU FINSERVE INDiA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended Marc

h 31, 2020

In computing the above information. certain estimates, assumption and adjustments have been made by the managsment which have

been relied upon by the auditars

41.4 Exposure to Real Estate Sectar (¥ in Lakh)
e __ Category March 31, 2020 |  March 31, 2019
Direct exposure
i. Residential Mortgages -

Lemlir_lg fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be 348 47
occupied by the borrower or that is ranted:
il. Commercial Real Estate *= -
Lending secured by mortgages on cornmercial real estates {office buildings, retail - -
space, multi-purpose commercial premises. multi-family rezidential buildings, multi-
tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land
acquisition. development and construction, etc ). Exposure shall also include non-
fund based limits
iii. Investments in Mortgaged Backed Securities (MBS} and other securitised
axXposures -
a. Rezidential 2
b. Commercial Real Estate :
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 349.47 -

41.5

41.7

**the exposure represents construction finance for residential buildings

In computing the above information, certain estimates, assumption and adjustments have been made by the managemant which have

been relied upon by the auditors

Exposure to Capital Market

(¥ in Lakh)

March 31, 2020

|Direct investmeant in equity shares,

of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
corporate debt;

i.{Advances against shares ! bonds / debentures or other secunties or on clean basis to

individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs ¢ ESOPs), convertible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equity-ocriented mutual funds;

Advances for any cther purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity orientad mutual funds are taken as primary security,

L|Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral securty of

shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity orentad mutual
funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertiole bonds [ convertible
debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;

.|Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of

stockbrokers and market makers;

i.[Loans =anctioned to corporates agamnst the security of shares [ bonds / debentures or

cther securities or on clean basis for meeting premoter's contribution o the equity of
new companies in anticipation of raising resources,

ii.|Bridge |oans to companies against expected equity flows ! issues;

.all exposures 1o Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

Ratings assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of ratings during the year

(¥ in Lakh)

ER Trpl‘ﬂf Fﬂcm' R :

CRA Amount

Rating assigned |

March 21,2019

CRISIL 25.000.00

Bank Loan Facility - CRISIL

CRISIL AStable

Mil

{¥in Lakh)

Provisions & Contingencies

" Wiarch 31, 2020

~ March 31, 2019

Break up of "Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in
Staterment Profit and Loss

i, Provisions for depreciation on Investment

ii. Provision towards WPA

i, Prowvision made towards Income tax

Iv. Provision for Standard Assets

w. Other Provision and Contingencies




WASTL FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to Financial Statement far the year ended March 31, 2020

42 Disclosure in line with RBI's circular DOR (MBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10,106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020

Mar:.jh 3, 2020 (Fir Lakh)
- {Provisiona} as ‘Met Carrying
required under Amount :
lrﬂ%fjiﬂ : S35 | IRACP norms. |
B [B1=(3]-{4] L7 A )
P‘erfurming Aszzets 1348 {71 12H
Standard Stage 1 349.47 178 M7 72 087 0.87
Elage 7 - = 5 d
Subtotal 349.47 | 175 347.72 0BT 0.87
Non-Performing Assets (MPA)
8) Substandara Slage 3 - & ps
by Dbl
-uD 1o 1 year Stage 3 - - . 2 -
1 ta 3 years Stage - - . i =
-mare than 3 years PPN |+~ NN FARRUIRIPES. .5 10 1 5 3 5 =
o i S A e A i
) Loss AssBk Stage 3
- ] -
Bubtotal for NPA ] - T
|Other tems such as guarantees, - 1 [
lcan commitments, ele which ars in =ang g 2 ” E g
ther scope of Ind A5 10% but no Stape 2
coversd  wnder  currenl  Incorme e 5
Recognition, Asset Classification and 5 % i : b :
Frovieioning (IRAZE) norms Seage 3
— Subtotal T - - - 1 - =
Stage 1 348.47 1.75 3T TE o.ar 0 &7
Stage 2 - - - 3 =
TOTAL Stage 3 = M | k . :
TOTAL Ja9.47 1.75 | 347.72 0.87 | 0.B7

Disclosure in line with RBI's circular DOR (NBFCL.CC.PD.No. 109/22.10.106/20158-20 dated March 13, 2020

March 31, 201% i !'f in Lakh)
0 v X ﬂ“ﬂlm"ﬂﬂ“ ; e HE R T P

{Provisiona) & u _Nlttwpu' :

m@m 8 S OO E O

Subtotal ) = s

Non-FPerforming Assats (NPA]
a) Subslandard Stage 3 -

b Coubtful

-up o 1 year

-11e 5 years

-mare than 3 years
otal for dou bl‘ful

) Loss Assel

Subtotal for NPA - - - -

Other jterms swch as guaranteas,

3 1
loan commitmaents, ete which are in g
the soope of Ind AS 109 but nat Stage 2 ; : L x
covered wunder  current  Income
Recogniticn, Asset Classification and Stage 2 s 2
Frovigsoning (IRACFE) morms
Sublotal ] = . : : i
Srage 1 - . - 3
Stage 2 - -
TOTAL i Z : : .
| Siage3 :
TOTAL - - =i ) - '_]

431 Disclosure in line with RBI's circular DOR DOR Mo BP.BC.63/21.04,048/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020 for the year ended March 31, 2020

(¥ in Lakh
il Respeciive am:-ums- in ,_-.I'..'ﬁ " Gveraue ::ate-;nnas where the maratonam ! deferment was exlended F tarris af mragraph 2 snd 3 -
I} Respactve amount where assel dassificabon penefits is exienced

jii} Provisions made during the Q4FY2020 in terms of paragraph 5 : - |
iv) Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods sgainst slippages and the residual provisicns in ter ekl 3




VASTU FINSERVE INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

44  The spread of COVID-19 across the globe and India has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in econormic activity and

45

48

47

48

financial markets. The outbreak of the virus has already been declared a global pandemic by the Warld Health Organization (WHO) on
March 11, 2020, On March 24, 2020, the Indian government announced a strict 21-day lockdown which extended by 19 days The
extent to which the COVID-1% pandemic impacts the Company’s results depends on future developments. The developments are
highly uncertain, including, amang other things, any new infarmation concarning the severity of the said pandemic and any action o
contain its spread or mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by the Cormpany.

In accordance to guidelines on COVID 15 - regulatory package issued by REI dated March 27, 2020, and April 17, 2020, the Company
may grant a moratorium of three months. Payment of all instalments as applicable, falling due betwsen March 1, 2020, and May 21
2020, to all eligible borrowers classified as Standard, even if overdue, as on February 28, 2020 For all such acocounts where the
moratorium is granted, the asset classification shall remain standstill during the moratorium period {ie the number of days past-due
shall exclude the moratorium period for asset classification)

The Company holds provisions as of March 31, 2020 against the potential impact of COVID-19 based on the inforrmation available at
this point. The provisions held by the Company are more than the RBI prescribed norms.

Expenditure in Foreign Currency
{F in Lakh)

. Particulars [ March 31,2020 [ March 31, 2019

Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Balance grouped under loans and advances in certain cases are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. Impact of the sarme, if any
shall be accounted as and when determined. which are not expected to be material.

In the apinion of the management, the loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if realized, paid in ardinary course of
business. The provision for all known liakilities are adequate and are not in excess of amount considered reasonably necessary.

There is no amount dus and payable to micro and small suppliers registered under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act. 2006 at the end of the year other than as disclosed. No interest has been paid! is payable by the Company during ¢
for the year to these 'Suppliers' other than as disclosed. The above information takes into account only those suppliers who have
submitted their registration details or has responded to the inguiries made by the Company for this purpose

Previous year figures have been re-grouped !/ re-arranged and re-classified wheraver necessary, to confarm to the current year's
classification.

As per our report of even date attached

For Mis T R Chadha & Co LLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
Firm Registration No. 08711N/N50QG28. Vastu Finserve India Private Limited
Chartered Accountants -
" 1 wh
e -
Jaan Uy G
Vikas Kumar Sandeep Menon Sudhir Variyar
Partnar _ Whele Time Director Directar
Membership No. 075363 {DIN: 02032154) (DIN: 00168672
apl
ﬁn'ﬂf’f""
Date: April 29, 2020 Vi Pallavi Bhambere

Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary





